


www.pharmadekoplc.com VISION & MISSION STATEMENT,
& OUR 7 CORE VALUES

CORPORATE VISION
To be one of the Leading Health Care Solution Providers

MISSION STATEMENT
To produce high quality and affordable health care and lifestyle products using a highly
skilled work force and technology whilst delivering superior returns to the shareholders
and contributing positively to our stakeholders

QUALITY STATEMENT
Pharma Deko Plc is committed to the production and delivery of quality products and
services that conform to quality standards as prescribed in International Monographs
and Company Standards. Our strive for quality is continuous in recognition of the
dynamic nature of standards and customer expectation. Quality to us is satisfying
customer’s requirement.

OUR 7 CORE VALUES

Customer Satisfaction

a Putting customer first

0 Putting customer satisfaction at the centre in all our activities, process, quality, and quantity at
the right time and outputs

m] Meeting and exceeding the needs and expectations of the customer

Integrity

0 Promise what you can deliver and deliver what you promised

m Delivering our values transparently, honestly & truthfully in all actions/activities
m Adherence to high moral and ethical principles; soundness of moral character

Getting Results
m) Meeting stated goals and objectives on time, with best use of resources at the least costs
m ] Focus on getting the best results against all obstacles and challenges

0 Doing the right thing at the right time

Team Spirit

m Collaboration and cooperation in order to achieve common goal(s)

0 Working harmoniously towards a common goal

a Putting the team achievement above your personal interest

Innovation

0 New thinking, new ideas

0 Consistently looking for better ways and new ideas to improve our systems, processes,

products, skills, capabilities that will save time, money, and reduce wastage

Respect
| Having consideration for the feelings, opinion, personal dignity and seif-esteem of superiors,
colleagues and subordinates

0 Cultivate the culture of active listening to the views and opinion of others

0 Refraining from injuring self-esteem of others by our actions, words and conducts
0 Living all of our values

0 Obey rules and regulations.

Recognition

0 Commendation for achievement at all levels

0 Appreciation of good work
0 Acknowledging good results of the contribution and success of others at all times.
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NOTICE OF MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 50" Annual General Meeting of Pharma-Deko Plc will be held at Palmgrove House,
Mo. 1, Shagamu Avenue, llupeju, Lagos State on Wednesday, 12 November, 2020 at 12 noon to transact the following
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December, 2018, together with the Reports of
the Directors, Audit Committee and Independent Auditors thereon.

2, To elect/re-glect Directors

3. To re-appoint the Independent Auditors

4. To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors
5. To elect members of the Audit Committee

NOTE:

1. PROXY

In view of COVID-19 pandemic, the restriction on mass gatherings and in line with the Guidelines issued by the Corporate
Affairs Commission on holding AGMs using proxies, attendance at the AGM shall only be by proxy, Consequently, a member
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is advised to select from the underlisted proposed proxies to attend and vote in his
stead,

a) Mr. Matthew Akinlade
b) Mr. Anthony Omojola
c)Mrs. Bisi Bakare

d) Mr. Mornah Awoh

e) Mrs. Odunuga Samiat

A proxy form is attached to the Annual Report. All instruments of proxy must be completed and deposited with the Office of
the Registrar of the Company, Apel Capital Registrars Limited at 8, Alhaji Bashorun Crescent, Off Morman Williams, [koyi,
Lagos or via E-mail at registrars@apel.com.ng not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting. The Company
has made arrangements to bear the cost of stamp duties on the instruments of proxy.

2, LIVE STREAMING OF THE AGM

The AGM will be streamed live. This will enable shareholders and other stakeholders who will not be attending physically to
follow the proceedings. The link for the AGM live stream would be made available at the Company's website at
www.pharmadekoplc.com.

3. CLOSURE OF REGISTER AND TRANSFER OF BOOKS
The Register of Members will be closed from the 26" day of October 2020 to 27" day of October 2020 both dates inclusive for
the purpose of updating the Register.

4, AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of 3 Shareholders and 3 Directors. In accordance with Section 359(5) of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act (cap C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria) 2004, any member of the Company may nominate a
Shareholder as a member of the Audit Committee by giving notice in writing to the Company Secretary at least 21 days
before the Annual General Meeting.

5. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Shareholders with dividend warrants and share certificates that have remained unclaimed, or are yet to be presented for
paymeant or returned for validation are advised to complete the e-dividend registration or contact the office of the Registrars,
Apel Capital Registrars Limited, 8, Alhaji Bashorun, Off Norman Williams Street, Ikoyi or email registrars@apel.com.ng to
confirm their dividend status.

6. RIGHTS OF SECURITIES' HOLDERS TO ASK QUESTIONS
Securities’ Holders have a right to ask questions not only at the Meesting, but also in writing prior to the Meeting, and such
questions must be submitted to the Company Secretary on or before 5 November 2020.

7. ELECTRONIC ANNUAL REPORT

The soft copy of the 2019 Annual Report is on our website and sent to our shareholders who have provided their email
addresses {o the Registrars. Shareholders who are interested in receiving the soft copy of the 2019 Annual Report should
request via email to: registrars@apel.com.ng

The date of this Notice is 13" October 2020,
BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD

-~ 2 Jﬁ:n_'&e-—'*

ELVIS E. ASIA
FOR: UNITY TRUSTEES LIMITED
COMPANY SECRETARY
1, Shagamu Avenue, llupaju, Lagos

®
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Revenue

Costof Sales

Loss before taxation

Taxation

Loss after taxation

Issued Share Capital

Total Equity

Total Non Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Total Mon Current Liabilities

Tatal Current Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2019

N'000

484,574

(312,617)

(276,460)

(2,423)

(278,883)

108,466

1,311,474

1,733,933

463,469

2,197,402

246,887

639,041

2,197 402

2018

N'000

1,023,806

(622,439)

(255,983)

(9.277)

(265,260)

108,466

1,580,356

1,812,288

510,849

2,323,137

186,991

545,790

2,323,137

Difference Difference

N'000

(539,232)

309,822

(20,478)

6,854

(13,623)

(278,754)

(78,356)

(47,380)

(125,735)

59,897

93,252

(125,736)

%o

(53)

(50)

(74)

(18)

(59

(9)

(3)
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Distinguished Shareholders, members of the Board of Directors,
representatives of the Regulatory Agencies, the Company
Secretary, our External Auditors, our Registrars, our Solicitors,
representatives of Management and Staff, members of the press,
other invited guests, ladies and gentlemen. It gives me great
pleasure to welcome you to the 50th Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of our Company; Pharma-Deko Plc. It is with great
honour that | present to you the Financial Report and
Performance Review of our Company for the financial year
ended 31st December 2019.

Before we proceed, it is with a heavy heart that | announce the

demise of our former Managing Director; Mr. Adekunle Abibu who

passed away on 8th January 2020 after a brief iliness and has

. .1 since been buried in accordance with Islamic Rites. During his

Lt e £ Pkt time with the Company as the Managing Director (till his death),

he made remarkable contributions to the growth of the Company.

As the Managing Director, he made significant efforts towards the settlement of all the loans that the

Company owed. He also pioneered the consolidation of the companies for effective and sustainable
operations.

2

P BEELT,

It was an honour to have him as a member of the Pharma-Deko Family as we will truly miss his
enthusiasm for work, brilliant contributions and support for the Company.

We pray that his gentle soul shall continue to rest in Perfect Peace.

Fellow shareholders, | wish to seize this opportunity to acknowledge the support and cooperation that
you have given to the Company and the Board over the years, notwithstanding the very challenging
economic situation in the country especially during this period of COVID-19 pandemic. | trust that we
can count on your continued support.

| wish to also use this opportunity to acknowledge the efforts of all the health workers across Migeria
that are at the forefront of fighting the deadly COVID-19 pandemic. Your commitment and devotion to
duty have been truly heroic.

The COVID-19 pandemic has greatly affected the norm of social gathering and our lives in general,
creating a new normal for the way things are done. In a bid to combat this pandemic, the government
and other stakeholders alike have set new guidelines on how individuals and companies may go about
their various activities/functions. It is therefare, in compliance with these guidelines that we have
organised our AGM.

To lend our support in the global fight against this pandemic, we have donated stocks of our Hexedene
Mouthwash worth millions of Naira to various state governments across the country. As you may all
know, Hexedene Mouthwash is highly effective in the treatment of sore throat, which is one of the
symptoms of COVID-19. We hope to continue to do more in line with our Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR).

Before presenting the financial report, | would also like to provide a brief review of the operating
economic environment which impacted on our performance as a Company in the year 2019.

OPERATING ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The Nigeria Business environment remained challenging and competitive as Power Instability and
Infrastructural deficit continue to affect the economy negatively.

Real GDP growth was estimated at 2.3% in 2019, marginally higher than 1.9% in 2018. Growth was
mainly in transport, an improved oil sector, information and communications technology. Agriculture
was hurt by sporadic flooding and by conflicts between herdsmen and local farmers. Manufacturing

L]
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CHAIRMAN’ STATEMENT = CONT’D

continues to suffer from a lack of financing.

The effort to lower inflation to the 6%—9% range faced structural and macroeconomic constraints,
including rising food prices and arrears payments, resulting in a rate estimated at 11.3% for 2019.

The financial challenges of most state and local governments as well as the increasing rate of
unemployment as published by the National Bureau of Statistics affected Consumer disposable
income during the year.

HEALTHSECTOR

While the health sector is still battling with the issue of counterfeit and substandard drugs, the issue of
drug abuse mostly among youths is still a major concern for the health ministry.

Recall that the Federal Minister of Health (FMH) on 1st May 2018 issued a directive to the National
Agency for Food and Drug Administration and Control (NAFDAC) and Pharmacists Council of Nigeria
(PCN) to suspend the production of “Cough Syrup Containing Codeine”, new license registration for the
product, the issuance of further import permit for Codeine Phosphate and to carry out an audit trail and
recall all “Cough Syrup Containing Codeine”.

The FMH further issued a communigué conseguent upon the ocutcome of the audit and recall exercise
which stated that 2.4 million bottles of "Cough Syrup Containing Codeine” were recalled from twenty
(20) companies involved in its production and sales.

It is worthy of note that various consultations on how to resolve the issue is still ongoing between the
Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Group of the Manufacturers Association of Nigeria (PMG-MAN),
NAFDAC, PCN and FMH.

COMPANY REVIEW

The FMH'’s suspension of the production and sales of “Cough Syrup Containing Codeine” negatively
impacted our company in the year 2019, given the level of investment we made on materials (raw and
packaging) and finished goods in 2018 in line with the pre-planned New Pharma Machine installation.
This resulted in a substantial Capital tie-down, loss of Sales and consequently loss of profit.

The consequence of this capital tie-down and low cash flow was the inability of the company to meet up
with its financial responsibilities to staff, government, and other stakeholders. This eventually altered
the smooth working relationship between the members of staff and the management team but for the
timely intervention of the Board of Directors.

Nevertheless, the Board of Directors and Management remain focused on our strategic initiatives
aimed at driving a shareholder-value and sustaining long-term growth. Be rest assured that we shall
continue to strive relentlessly to improve the performance of your Company.

OPERATING RESULT

Distinguished shareholders, As a result of all the earlier mentioned business operating challenges, our
Company recorded a turnover of N485 million which is 53% less than our achieved turnover for 2018.
This resulted in a loss of N279 million.

EXTERNAL FUND SOURCING
At present, we are financing our operations with inflows from sales and zero borrowing.

However, in order to accelerate our Company's growth, we shall be considering External Capital
Injection through favourable financing options. This is expected to yield positive results as we currently

6
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have a healthy credit status to attract potential investors.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Board and Management are reasonably confident that with the strategic initiatives being
introduced, our continued investment in our brands and people as well as with the injection of the
expected external funding, we will be delivering growth for the business in the coming years.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our Company played its role of Corporate Social Responsibility to communities around Agbara
Industrial Estate and other notable Institutions by way of Product donations, Partnership contributions
and Sponsorships.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Our Company continued in the Training and Development of its key Staff to ensure that they are always
up to date with Pharmaceutical and Consumer installations and innovative technology in our business
sector.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors are not recommending the payment of dividends for the year ended 31st
December, 2019.

CHANGESIN THE BOARD

Upon the demise of the former Managing Director of our Company; Mr. Adekunle Abibu, the Board has
appointed Mr. Olukayode Oluwole Isola as the Acting Managing Director with effect from January 2020.

Prior to his appointment, Mr. Olukayode Oluwole |sola was the General Manager, Operations, of
Pharma-Deko Plc.

Having been with the Company for a very long time, we believe that he has a clear understanding of the
Company's business, its challenges and the plans to move the Company forward.

| have no doubt that we will all join hands with our new Managing Director and his Management team to
grow our beloved Company to an enviable height.

Kindly refer to the Directors Profile Page on the Annual Report and Financial Statement for more details
on Mr. Olukayode Oluwole Isola.

CONCLUSION

Distinguished ladies and gentlemen, | hereby express my sincere gratitude to the Board, Management
and staff of the Company for their devotion to duty and excellence even in the face of instabilities in the
operating environment.

Finally, | thank you most sincerely for your presence and kind attention.

F.RAWILLIAMS
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COMPANY’S PROFILE
PHARMA-DEKO PLC, started in Nigeria in 1969 as Parke-Davis Company (US) operating a non-
trading branch in Nigeria to promote its world-wide range of quality pharmaceutical products. In
December 1969, the company was incorporated under Nigerian law as Parke-Davis and Company
(Nig.) Limited. Prior to this, the importation and distribution of the company products was done by
appointed agents. The new company took over all these functions upon incorporation. Then in 1974,
with the promulgation of the Nigerian Enterprise Promotion Decree (1972), 40% of the shares of the
company were sold to the Nigeria citizens and associations. The company operated under the name,
Parke-Davis and Company (Nig.) Limited until February 28, 1980, when the name was changed to
Pharma-Deko Limited. Sequel to its conversion from private to public company limited by shares, the
company is now known as Pharma-Deko Plc. Pharma-Deko Plc is the first Pharmaceutical Company in
Nigeria to be ISO (International Standard Organisation) certified to produce Vitacee (brand of Vitamin

C) Drops/Syrups and Carbonated Soft Drinks.

Our consistent level of quality and dedication to healthcare makes us one of the country's leading
producers of pharmaceutical and consumer healthcare products. Our popular brands include but are
not limited to Pharmadec (Syrup and Drops), Parkalin Cough Range, Anuproct, Salins Liniment,
Revitone Blood Tonic and Antasil brand of antacid. Others are Sans Cream Soda, Dextra Energy Drink,
Blackcurrant, Bien Flavoured Water range, MS Cola, Brett Mouthwash, Hexedene and many other
products emanating from our research and development laboratory. These products are distributed

nation-wide through a network of Medical and Consumer Sales Representatives.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

MR.FOLARIN R.A.WILLIAMS - CHAIRMAN
Mr. Folarin Williams holds degrees in Chemical Engineering and Law. He graduated with a B.Sc.

(Hons.) ACGI in Chemical Engineering from the Imperial College of Science and Technology London
University in 1977. He also obtained a Master of Arts (Cantab) Law from Selwyn College Cambridge in
1983 and was called to the Nigerian Bar in 1984. He holds board appointments in a number of
companies within the pharmaceutical, information technology, logistics and oil-fields services industrial
sectors. He is currently the Managing Partner of Chief Rotimi Williams' Chambers, a full service Law
firmin Nigeria.

MR. ADEKUNLE ABIBU-MANAGING DIRECTOR
Mr. Adekunle Abibu graduated with a B.Sc. (Hons.) in Industrial Engineering from the University of

Ibadan in 1989. He joined Pharma-Deko Plc as its Managing Director on the 4th of August, 2008.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Abibu had worked in the Nestle Group for over sixteen years during
which he rose to become the Managing Director of Nestle Guinea for four years. Nestle Guinea
oversees the operations in Sierra Leone, Liberia and Guinea Bissau in addition to Guinea Conakry.
Before his appointment as the Managing Director for Nestle Guinea, he was responsible for Supply
Chain covering twenty-three African Countries. He has vast experience in Industrial Engineering,
Project Management, International Supply Chain and Commercial Management and attended various
Management Trainings including in London Business School (LBS) & Institute of Management
Development (IMD).

MR.GODWIN A.ALEGIEUNO-NON-EXECUTIVEDIRECTOR
Mr. Alegieuno is a Chartered Accountant and an Insurance Practitioner. He is a fellow of the Chartered

Association of Certified Accountants, Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria and also Chartered
Insurer. He obtained an Ordinary National Diploma (OND) in 1973 and a High National Diploma in 1975
both in Accountancy from the College of Technology, Yaba. He also obtained a Post Graduate Diploma
in Finance from the University of Leicester, United Kingdom in 2003. He has vast experience in
Commerce, Industry and Insurance. He retired as the Managing Director of Lion of Africa Insurance
Company Limited. He joined the Board of Pharma-Deko Plc in 1994,

MR. E.A. ANABA-NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
He holds an MBA (Banking & Finance) from Enugu State University and Advanced Management of

International Agreements & Joint Ventures from University of Lagos. He also obtained aB.Sc. (Hons)in
Management Studies from University of Calabar. He is a fellow, Chartered Institute of Bankers,
Associate, Institute of Capital Market Registrars, Associate, Chartered Institute of Management and

Associate, Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA).
He has worked in both public and private sectors with experience spanning over 20years and has held

board appointment in many companies. His experience covers Corporate Finance, Investment
Management, Project Finance, Capital Market and Money Market Services. He joined the Board of
Directors in 2003 as an alternate director and was subsequently appointed a directorin 2018.

CHIEF JOEO.ANYIGBO-NON-EXECUTIVEDIRECTOR
Chief Anyigbo is an Engineer and businessman. He has over 30 years extensive experience in all
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sectors of the Qil and Gas Industry. He is a fellow of Nigerian Society of Chemical Engineers, a member
of the Board of Trustees of Nigeria Society of Chemical Engineers and a recipient of National
Productivity Order of Merit Award. He retired in 2002 from Chevron Nigeria Limited as a Pioneer
Executive Director. Chief Anyigbo graduated with a B.Sc. (Hons.) in Chemical Engineering from
Lafayette College, Pennsylvania, U.S.A. in 1967. He obtained Masters in Science from Carnegie-
Mellon University in 1969 and a Masters degree in Business Administration (MBA) from the University
of Pittsburgh, U.S5.A. 1971. He joined the Board of Directors in 2006.

MR. COLLINS C. CHIKELUBA-NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Chikeluba is a Lawyer, businessman and philanthropist with business interest in Nigeria, Europe,

America and Asia. He graduated with a B.Sc. (Hons.) in Business Administration (Major in
Management Science and Minor in Marketing) from Fontbone University, St. Louis, U.S.A. in 1983. Mr.
Chikeluba obtained a Masters degree in Finance from the Webster University, USAin 1984 and a Juris
Doctoris from St. Louis University, School of Law, USA in 1987. He was called to the Nigerian Bar in
1988. His business interests span across various sectors of the economy including; Transportation,
Insurance, Qil and Gas, Banking, Manufacturing and Real Estate. He holds Board appointments in
other companies such as SET Plec and Duport-Marine Limited.

PROFESSORH.A.B. COKER-NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Professor Herbert A.B. Coker is a Professor of Pharmaceutical Chemistry in the Faculty of Pharmacy,

University of Lagos. He joined the then School of Pharmacy on 17th December, 1984 as Lecturer 1 and
rose through the ranks to the post of Professor in October 1994. Professor Coker teaches
Undergraduates and Postgraduate courses and conducts researches in Medical Chemistry, Clinical
Pharmacology of Drugs, Natural Products Sciences, Drug Design and Development, Pharmaceuticals
& Food Quality Assurance, Environmental Concerns and Clinical Pharmacy. Professor Coker has
published quite a number of research works and professional opinions, in International (offshore) and
MNational (onshore) Journals. He also renders professional services to the Federal Government of
Nigeria and Lagos State Government, as well as to foreign establishments in China, Indonesia, and
India. He is a member of numerous professional bodies and possesses about 30 years experience in
Pharmacy and health-related matters. Professor Coker had his early education at Ladilak Institute,
Yaba (under the watchful eyes of the late Mrs. Rita Akaje-Macaulay; nee Hamitton), Lagos Baptist
Academy, Ibadan Grammar School, Ahmadu Bello University, Strathclyde in Glasgow, United
Kingdom. He was appointed to the Board of Directors of Pharma-Deko to assist with the Product
Quality Assurance Pharmaceutical Technology and New Products Development amongst many other
health related issues.

MR. KOLAPOA. LAWSON -NON -EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Kolapo Lawson is a Chartered Accountant and business tycoon. He graduated with B.Sc. (Hons. ) in

Economics from the London School of Economics and Political Science in 1972. He joined the
International Accountancy Firm of Coopers and Lybrand, London (now part of PriceWaterHouse
Coopers) where he qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1975. He is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants (England & Wales) and Nigeria. He is the President of Lawson Corporation and
Chairman, Agbara Estates Limited and Chairman of Acorn Petroleum Plc. Mr. Kolapo Lawson was the
Chairman of Ecobank Transnational Incorporated and holds Board appointments in many other
companies. He joined the Board of Directors in 1993.

1
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Directors present their report and audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st
December2019.
1. Legal Form

The Company was incorporated as a private limited liability company in 1969 as PARKE-DAVIS & CO
(NIG.) LTD. In 1980, the Company changed its name to PHARMA-DEKO LIMITED, and in pursuance
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020, is now known as PHARMA-DEKO PLC to date.

2. Principal Activities and Review of Business

The company's principal activities include the manufacturing, packaging and marketing of high quality
pharmaceutical and consumer products. The consumer and pharmaceutical products share the same
production lines and the company leverages on this to ensure efficiency and effectiveness in its
production process.

The company is also engaged in the use of its facilities for manufacturing and packaging services for
third parties.

3. Beneficial Ownership
The Company is 100% owned by Nigerian Citizens.

4. Operating Results

The Federal Government of Nigeria(FGN) placed a ban on the importation and sale of any
pharmaceutical product that contains codeine phosphate. The ban affected the company’s sale of its
flagship product - "Parkalin Cough Syrup”. The result of operations in the year as follows:

2019 2018
N'000 N'000
Revenue 484 574 1,023,806
Costofsales 312617 622,439
Loss before taxation (276,460) (255,045)
Taxation (2423) (9.277)
Loss after taxation (278,883) (265,260)
Other comprehensive income(net of tax) - 123,791
Total comprehensive loss 27 141
5. Share capital
2019 2018
Authorised Number of shares
Ordinary shares 150,000,000 150,000,000
2019 2018 2019 2018
Issued and fully paid N.'000 N.'000 Mumber of shares
Ordinary shares 108,466 108,466 216,931,596 216,931,596

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review.

6. Dividend
No dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors for the 2019 financial year.

y 8 Directorate
The names of the Directors as at the date of this report and those who have held office during the
referenced year are as follows:

"2



Directors

Mr. F. R. AWilliams (Jr.) Re-appointed on 22™ May 2018
Mr. J. A. Abibu Passed away on 8" January 2020
Mr. 0.0. Isola Appointed on 22" January 2020
Mr. G.A. Alegieuno Re-appointed on 23" May 2019
Mr. E.A. Anaba Re-appointed on 23" May 2019
ChiefJ. O.Anyigbo Re-appointed on 23" May 2019
ChiefC. C. Chikeluba Re-appointed on 4" May 2017
Prof. H.A. B. Coker Re-appointed on 22™ May 2018
Mr. K. A. Lawson Re-appointed on 4" May 2017

It was with deep sense of loss but with total submission to the will of God that the Staff, Management and Board of
the company received the news of the death of the Managing Director, Engr. J. A. Abibu who passed away on 8
January 2020.

Messrs. C.C. Chikeluba, K.A. Lawson and O.0. Isola will retire by rotation from the Board of Directors at the 50"
Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered themselves for re-election/election.

CHANGES ON THE BOARD

Since the conclusion of the last Annual General Meeting, there have been changes with respect to the Board
Members. Mr. J.A. Abibu passed away on 8" January 2020. Mr. 0.0, Isola has since been appointed to the Board
and as the acting Managing Director of the Company on 22™ January 2020.

8. Directors' Interests in Shares

As at December 31, 2019, the interest of the Directors in the issued share capital of the company as recorded in
the register of shareholders and/or as notified by them for the purposes of section 275 and 276 of the Companies
andAllied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004 are as follows

Interests in shares

Directors 2019 2018 2019 2018
Direct Direct Indirect Indirect
Mr. F.R.A. Williams (Jr) 15,194,440 15,194,440 57,393,000 57,393,000
Mr. J.A_Abibu (deceased, 8 Jan. 2020) 2588170 2,588,170 - -
Mr. C.C. Chikeluba 23,136,950 23,136,950 - -
Mr. KA. Lawson 300,000 300,000 3,079,141 3,079,141
ChiefJ.O. Anyigbo 25,000,000 25,000,000 - -
Mr. G.A. Alegieuno 500,000 500,000 - -
Alhaji B. Zakariyau 1,300 1,300 - -
Professor Herbert A.B Coker 150,000 150,000 - -
Mr. E.A. Anaba - - 7.000,100  7.000,100

__66,870.860 66,870,860 67.472241 67472241
g, Director's interest in contracts

During the financial year contracts were entered into which directors or officers of the company had an interest
and which affected the business of the company. The transactions were however all conducted at arm's length.
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10.  Analysis Of Shareholding

BEGINNING ENDING TOTAL | % OF TOTAL % OF
RAMGE EAMNGE | SHAREHOLDER| SHAREHOLDER | SHAREHOLDING| SHAREHOLDING |
1 1,000 1,961 | 53.00 888,723 0.41
1,001 5,000 1,081 | 2922 2,703,365 1.25
5,001 10,000 256 | 6.92 2,002,373 0.92
10,001 50,000 294 7.95 6,800,354 3.14
50,001 100,000 42 1.14 3,263,152 1.51
100,001 500,000 36 | 0.97 8671.126 4.00
500,001 1,000,000 11 0.30 8,737,883 4.03
1,000,001 100,000,000 19 | 0.51 183,751,718 B4.75
TOTALS 3,700 | 100.00 216,819,694 100.00

11. Substantial Shareholders
According to the Register of Members, the following shareholders of the company held more than 5 percent of the

issued share capital of the company on 31st December 2019;

E NAME ADDRESS HOLDINGS| %HOLDING
1 _|United Investment Limited P.O.Box 3426 Lagos 57,393,000 26.47%
2 |AnyigboJosaphat Olisamezie |  No 7 Funso Martins Street Parkview |koyi, Lagos 25,000,000 11.53%
3 |Chikeluba, C.C. 1. Abimbola Shodipe St. Surulere Off Western Avenue, Lagos 23,136,950 10.67%
4 Osai Stephen. U. 7 Okunlola Aina Streef, Okupe Maryland, lkeja, Lagos | 17,520,000 B.08%
5 _|Wiliams Folarin RotimiAbiola |1A, Shagamu Avenue, llupeju. P.O. BOX 3426, Lagos 15,194,440 7.01%
! 138,244,390 63.76%

No other individual holds above 5% of the issued and fully paid shares of the Company.

12.  Donations and Charity Gifts

The following are the donations and/ar charitable gifts madé during the year 2019;

A Recipients Donations Value

1. PMG - Manufactural Association of Nigeria Product packs 33,800

2. LUTH-Lagos University Teaching Hospital Product packs 20,200

3. Faculty of Dental science LUTH Product packs 6.250

4. Fed Ministry of Labour Abeokuta Product packs 3,125

5. | NIFEST National Institute of Food Science & Tech. | Productpacks | 4,265
67,640 .

13. Dividend

The Board does not recommend any payment of dividend.

14. Events after the reporting period

The novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic which is spread around the globe rapidly is taking a toll on not just
human life, but on businesses and financial markets too, and the extent of this is currently indeterminate.
Companies therefore need to carefully consider the accounting implications of this situation.

While the outbreak is having impact on almost all entities directly or indirectly, it has directly affected the operations
of our company especially since March 2020 with widespread lockdowns being enforced across the world.

The company's Consumer business is directly affected by COVID-19 as we are to import needed spare part for our
Bottling Machine from Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) in China. The delay in importation of the spare
parts from China due to lockdown has disrupted in many ways the productions of Sans Cream Soda the major
product of Pharma-Deko Plc. This will definitely impact the profitability of our consumer business in 2020.
Pharma-Deko Plc, also being a player in the pharmaceuticals and medical subsector of the manufacturing
industry, has been affected adversely on its raw materials input as many of the suppliers are unable to physically
bring the materials to Pharma-Deko Premises because of the restriction of movement and border closure. This has
affected the price of raw and packaging materials.

It is difficult at this early period to estimate the financial impact of the Novel COVID-19 Pandemic on the company
as it is not yet practicable to do so. Therefore, no financial impact of this pandemic is disclosed in the financial
statements. Moreover, this event is seen as a non-adjusting post period event, and thus will not have financial
effect on the balance reported in year 2019 Financial Statements.

Based on the available information to date, the Directors believe that the Novel COVID-19 Pandemic will not a
much significant effect on the future operations of the company especially as several measures have already been
put in place as the lockdown is being eased, to ensure the company is able to maintain and even improve on its
level of operations.

The Directors also believe that the Going-Concern of Pharma-Deko Plc is not threatened by this COVID-19
Pandemic because of the measures already put in place to keep the organization on a Going-concern tooling



15. Going concern

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future and accordingly the annual report and financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The directors have satisfied themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that
it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not
aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the company. The directors are also not aware of
any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation |
which may affect the company. H

16. Compliance with the Law |
The Board ensures that management complied with all the laws relating to the businesses of the company. The I
Board also ensures that the company co-operates with the relevant Statutory Agencies in the course of carrying I
out its business. The Directors hereby confirm that the company complied fully with all the requisite regulatory
and legal requirements during the financial year.

17. Corporate governance
In Pharma-Deko Plc, our actions and interactions with our consumers, customers, employees, government |
officials, suppliers, shareholders and other stakeholders reflect our values, beliefs and principles. I
Our business is largely self-regulated and we pride ourselves as leading our peers in the industry and Nigeria in [
this regard. In addition to self-regulation, we are committed to conducting business in line with best practice, in l
accordance with applicable laws and regulations in Nigeria, in line with the requirements of the Nigerian Stock I
Exchange as well as in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance in Nigeria. I
The Company's operations have always been guided by the principles of corporate governance, with the H
objective of achieving improved corporate performance, whilst enlisting adherence to the highest ethical
standards.

The core value of the Company’s abiding governance philosophy is integrity in all its operations.

18.  Employment of Disabled Persons I
It is the policy of the Company to ensure that there is no discrimination in considering applications for [
employment including those of physically challenged persons. The policy ensures that disadvantaged persons [
are afforded, as far as is practicable, identical opportunities with other employees. There was no such physically I
challenged person employed during the twelve months ended 31" December, 2019. I

19. Health & Safety at Work

The Company places a high premium on the health, safety and welfare of its employees at place of waork. All
efforts are geared towards providing a safe and conducive working environment for employees. To this end,
there is a health and safety policy supported by systems and procedures for ensuring that safe working practices
are followed in the performance of all Company functions. In addition, medical facilities at specified limits are
provided to confirmed employees atthe Company’s expense. |

20. Company’s Distributors [

SIN CUSTOMER LOCATION H
1 ADDIDE LIMITED Lagos |
2 ADEDELOFF FRONTIERS LTD Lagos

3 ADEJUMO & SONS NIG.LTD Jos I
4 ALH USMAN INVESTMENT Gombe |
H AL-MUSIKVENTURES Katsina [
6 ARTEEE INDUSTRIES LTD (SPAR) Lagos

T AY Kaduna |
8 B &Y SAADVENTURES LIMITED Minna I
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9 BYSONS Aba I
10 DIVINE TREASURE FIELDLTD Onitsha [
1 GOMNAKD INVESTMENT Suleja I
12 GRAND SQUARE SUPERMARKET Lagos
13 GROCERY BAZAAR Lagos |
14 HAMSTORE LTD Zamfara [
15 Mahabub kassim Kano |
16 MRS THERESA OB Aba H
17 MRS TINAU &ASSOCIATELTD Yola
18 MUTTEX PHARMACY CHEMISTLTD Akure ”
19 OKOBIZ VENTURES LTD Yola [
20 OSCCARMORE UNIVERSAL SERVICE Agbor H
21 PRICEPOINTE WHOLESALE CLUB Lagos H
22 PRINCE EBEANO & CO Lagos
23 RAY CHOICE INVESTMENT Lagos I
24 RON-LOLLVENTURES Lagos [
25 Sauki Fish Kofar Guga Kastina Limited Kastina [
26 SPLASH SUPER STORE Kastina
27 SUFAYE .SAHMEDENT. Kano ”
28 TRIPPLE G NUGWA Kano I
29 TRIPPLE H. MADUGU Kano [
30 WORLD WIDE COMMERCIALVENTURES LTD. Lagos |
31 YINIKAWA ENTERPRISES LTD. Ibadan

21. Company’s Suppliers f
The company's main overseas suppliers are: [
HAUTEK INDUSTRIES CO., LTD |
MAMNJING UNION PACK IMPORT & EXPORT CO., LTD
TRADENIGER IMPEXPVTLTD

YORK-JOHNSON CONTROL COMPANY
ZHANGJIAGANG MACHINE CO., LTD ”

N Bt P -

The main Local Suppliers are: I
MANIPAL INTERNATIONAL PRESS LTD |
BMS INTERN. RESOURCES LIMITED |
BOC GASES NIGERIAFPLC

CARDSTEL SOLUTIONSLTD

DANGOTE SUGAR REFINERY PLC ”
EURO GLOBAL FOODS & DISTILLERIES LTD |
FORTE OILPLC I
GLOBAL STERLING PRODUCTS LIMITED H
QUORUM PACKAGINGLTD I
MODEL MAINTENANCE SERVICES
NIPCO PLC

AKODAGENCY

ROTOPRINT LIMITED ”
RT BRISCOE (NIGERIA)PLC ”
MMTA |
TRISANIGERIALTD H
FIYIQUE VENTURES LTD i
WAHUM PACKAGING LIMITED

EN Gt bota A
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22, Employment policies |
The Company places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and maintains an effective I
communication with all employees who, subject to practical considerations, are consulted on and involved in [
decisions that affect their current jobs or future prospects. The Company accordingly holds regular staff I
meetings to discuss the Company’s day-to-day operations, business focus and staff welfare issues. l

23. Training and development
Training courses are geared towards the developmental needs of staff and the improvement in their skill sets to

face the increasing challenge required for better performance on their jobs.
The Company ensures that staff receives continuous on-the-job training.

24, Board of Directors I
The Board is responsible for the aversight of the business, long-term strategy and objectives, and the oversight [
of the Company’s risks while evaluating and directing implementation of Company controls and procedures I
including, in particular, maintaining a sound system of internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investments I
and the Company's assets. There are currently four (4) regularly scheduled Board meetings during each I
financial year. I

25, Composition of the Board of Directors and Procedure for Board Appointments
The Board currently consists of the Chairman, 6 Non-Executive Directors and 1 Executive Director. H
All Directors are selected on the basis of certain core competencies including experience in marketing, general |
operations, strategy, law, human resources, technology, media or public relations, finance or accounting, retail, |
consumer products, international business/markets, logistics, product design, merchandising or experience as I
a Managing Director or Finance Director. In addition to having one or more of these core competencies, [
candidates for appointment as Directors are identified and considered on the basis of knowledge, experience, I
integrity, diversity, leadership, reputation, and ability to understand the Company’s business. |

26. Separation of the positions of Chairman and Managing Director

The positions of the Managing Director and that of the Chairman of the Board are occupied by different persons
and the Managing Direcior is responsible for implementation of the Company’s business strategy and the day-
to-day management of the business.

27.  Schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board I
The following are the matters reserved for the Board of Directors of the Company: I
i. Strategy and management I

. Input into the development of the long-term objectives and overall commercial strategy for the Company. I
. Owversight of the Company's operations. i
. Review of performance in the light of the Company's strategy, objectives, business plans and budgets

and ensuring that any necessary corrective action is taken. H
. Extension of the Company's activities into new business or geographic areas. |
. Any decision to cease to operate all or any material part of the Company's business. I

ii. Structure and capital I

. Changes relating to the Company's capital structure including reduction of capital, share issues (except I
under employee share plans) and share buy backs. H

. Major changes to the Company’s corporate structure. I

. Changes to the Company's management and control structure.

. Any changes to the Company’s listing or its status as a publicly listed company. |
[
|

@47
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iii. Financial reporting and controls

. Approval of preliminary announcements of interim and final results.
. Approval of the annual report and accounts, including the corporate governance statement. |
. Approval of the dividend policy. I
. Declaration of the interim dividend and recommendation of the final dividend. I
. Approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or practices. I
- Approval of treasury policies including foreign currency exposure. H
iv. Internal controls |
Ensuring maintenance of a sound system of internal control and risk management including: [
. Receiving reports from the Finance and Risk Committee and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company's ||
risk and control processes to support its strategy and objectives; I
. Undertaking an annual assessment of these processes through the Finance and Risk Committee; and |
. Approving an appropriate statement for inclusion in the annual report. i
V. Contracts I
. Major capital projects. I
. Contracts which are material strategically or by reason of size, entered into by the Company in the ordinary

course of business, for example bank borrowings and acquisitions or disposals of fixed assets of amounts H
above the threshold reserved for Executive Directors.

. Contracts of the Company (or any subsidiary) not in the ordinary course of business, for example loans and
repayments; foreign currency fransactions and; major acquisitions or disposals of amounts above the
thresholds reserved for Executive Directors under the Schedule of Authaorities and Limits. |

. Major investments including the acquisition or disposal of interests of more than five (5) percent in the voting |
shares of any company or the making of any takeover offer. I

vi. Communication
. Approval of resolutions and corresponding documentation to be put forward to shareholders at a general H
meeting. |
. Approval of all circulars and listing particulars (approval of routine documents such as periodic circulars about |
scrip dividend procedures or exercise of conversion rights could be delegated to a committee). [
. Approval of press releases concermning matters decided by the Board. I
wii. Board membership and other appointments H
. Changes to the structure, size and composition of the Board, following recommendations from the H
Remuneration Committee. |
. Ensuring adequate succession planning for the Board and senior management following recommendations |
from the Remuneration Committee. I
. Appointments to the Board, following recommendations by the Remuneration Committee. I
. Approval of appointment of the Chairman of the Board following recommendations by the Remuneration H
Committee.
. Appointment of Non-executive Directors including Independent Directors following recommendations by the H
Remuneration Committee. |
. Membership and Chairmanship of Board Commitiees [
. Continuation in office of Directors at the end of their term of office, when they are due to be reelected by ||
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and otherwise as appropriate. I
. Continuation in office of Non-executive Directors at any time. H
. Appointment or removal of the Company Secretary following recommendations by the Remuneration
Commitiee. H
. Appointment, reappointment or remaoval of the external auditor to be put to shareholders for approval, I
following the recommendation of the Finance and Risk Committee. [
. Appointments to Board of subsidiaries. |



viii. Remuneration

. Approval of the remuneration policy for the Directors, Company Secretary and other senior executives
following recommendations by the Remuneration Committee.

. Approval of the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors, subject to the Articles of Association and
shareholder approval as appropriate following recommendations by the Remuneration Committee.

' The introduction of new share incentive plans or major changes to existing plans, to be put to

shareholders for approval following recommendations by the Remuneration Committee.

ix. Delegation of authority

. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, which should
be inwriting.

. Approval of terms of reference of Board Committees.

. Receiving reports from Board Committees on their activities.

X. Corporate Governance matters

. Undertaking a formal and rigorous review of its own performance, that of its Committees and individual
Directors.

. Determining the independence of Directors.

§ Considering the balance of interests between shareholders, employees, customers and the community.

' Review of the Company'’s overall corporate governance arrangements.

Receiving reports on the views of the Company’s shareholders.

28. Induction and Training

The Company has in place a formal induction program for newly appointed Directors. As part of this induction,
each new Director is provided with core materials and asked to complete a series of introductory meetings to
become knowledgeable about the Company's business and familiar with the senior management team. Newly
appointed Directors are also conducted round the production facilities of the Company to gain first-hand
knowledge of the production process and the emphasis placed on health and safety by the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is in charge of evolving a continuing education programme to ensure existing
Directors stay current with the Company's business and objectives as well as relevant industry information and
other external factors such as corporate governance requirements and best practices. As part of the programme,
Directors are encouraged to periodically attend appropriate continuing education seminars or programmes
which would be beneficial to the Company and the Directors’ service on the Board.

29, Performance Evaluation process

The Remuneration Commitiee oversees a formal evaluation process to assess the composition and
performance of the Board, each Committee, and each individual director on an annual basis. The assessment is
conducted to ensure the Board, Committees, and individual members are effective and productive and to identify
opportunities forimprovement and skill set needs.

As part of the process, each member completes a detailed and thorough questionnaire and each member also
participates in an oral interview/conversation session as a follow up to the completion of the questionnaires. The
results are aggregated and summarized for discussion purposes however; individual responses are not
attributed to any member and are kept confidential to ensure honest and candid feedback is received. The
Remuneration Committee reports annually to the full Board with result of the evaluation exercise. Directors will
not be nominated for re-election unless it is affirmatively determined that the Director is substantially contributing
to the overall effectiveness of the Board.

A summary of the 2019 Board Performance Evaluation is that the Board is composed of highly experienced
individuals with diverse backgrounds and the Board is effectively and efficiently discharging its oversight
functions of the Company’s business strategy/plan as well as its other responsibilities. The evaluation also
confirmed that the Directors are very committed to the business of the Company. It was however noted that there
is room for improvement in the area of continuous director development. The recommendations of the
performance evaluation have been considered by the Board and are being implemented as deemed necessary.
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30. Attendance at Board Meetings |
The Board held five (5) meetings during the 2019 financial year. The following table shows the membershipand |
attendance of Directors at Board meetings during the 2019 financial year; I

S/M | Directars 26/3/2019 23/5/2019|26/7/2019 29/10/2019|10/12/2019 | Total no of Meetings attended I
1 Mr. FE.R.A. Williams P P P | P P 5 I
Mr. J.A. Abibu P P o P P 5
é Mr.G.A.Alegieuno | P P P P P 5 ”
4 | Mr.E.A Anaba P P P P P 5 H
5 | ChiefJ. Anyigbo P P P AWA P 4 [
6 | ChiefC.C.Chikeluba| P P B P P 5 I
7 | Prof.H.A.B.Coker | P P P P P 5 H
8 Mr. K. Lawson P P P AWA B 4 H
P—Present | AWA-AbsentwithApology| N/A-NotApplicable

31. Board Committees H
As at the date of this report, the Company has in place, the following Board Committees: I
Remuneration and Human Resources Board Committee, Finance And General Purpose Board Commitiee, |
Science And Technology Board Committee and Risk Management Committee. I
The following table shows the membership and attendance of Directors at Board Committee meetings duringthe |
2019 financial year:

Remuneration Committee Meetings

20

Cm | Directors 5/2/2019| 12/7/2019 |25/7/2019 18/11/2019 | 25/11/2019 [17/12/2019 |Total No of Meetings Attended |
1 IMr K. Lawson P AWA | P P AWA P | 4 H
ZJM'.G.A.AIggj_auno P P P P P P 6 ; I
3 IMr.E.A.Anaba P P p P P P 6 H
P-Present | AWA-AbsentwithApology| N/A-NotApplicable H
b. Finance And Human Resources Board Committee Meetings: |
|5.th Directors 24/1/2019 11/2/2019 | 26/4/2019 | 24/7/2019 | 25/10/2019| 29/11/2019 | Total No of Meetings Attended I
1 |Mr. ER.A Williams P E P P P P 6 i I
2 |Mr.J.A. Abibu P P P P P P 6 |
3 |ChiefC.C Chikeluba| P AWA B P P P 5
4 IMr G A Alegieunc P | P P P P P 5] H
P-Present | AWA-AbsentwithApology| N/A-NotApplicable I
[
c. Science And Technology Board Committee Meetings: I
S/IN | Directors 29/3/2019| 11/10/2019 | 22/10/2019| 26/11/2019 | 19/12/2019 | Total No of Meetings Attended
1| Mr.ERA Williams p P P P | p 5 |
2 | Mr.J.A Abibu P P P p | p 5 | W
3 [ Prof H.A.B. Goker L P P P__| P 5 : |
P-Present | AWA-AbsentwithApology| MN/A-NotApplicable l
|d' Risk Management Committee
SiN NAME OF MEMBERS 29/3/2019 | TOTALNOOF MEETINGS ATTENDED
1 Mr. K. Lawson P 1 I
2. Mr. J. A, Abibu P 1 [
3. Chief J. Anyigbo P 1 : I
4 ChiefC.C. Chikeluba P 1 . H
5. Mr. E.A Anaba B 1 : I
P-Present | AWA-AbsentwithApology| N/A-NotApplicable
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Each of the Committee’'s meetings was attended by the Managing Director, Chief Finance Officer, the Financial H
Controller and the Company's Solicitors, when the need arises. Other senior management members are invited

to brief the Committee on agenda items related to their areas of responsibilities. H
The Board was kept updated and informed at its regular quarterly meetings of the activities of the Committees f
through the Reports of the meetings of the Committee and verbal updates provided to the Board by the Chairman I
of the Committee which is included as a regular item on the agenda of Board meetings.

32. Audit Committee H
The Company has a Statutory Audit Committee set up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies and I
Allied Matters Act. It comprises of a mixture of Non-Executive Directors and ordinary shareholders elected at the I
Annual General Meeting. It evaluates annually the independence and performance of external auditors, H
receives the interim and final audit presentation from the external auditors and also reviews with management

and the external auditors the annual audited financial statements before its submission to the Board. |
During the year, the Committee approved the audit plan and scope of the external auditors for the financial year I
and reviewed quarterly and half yearly financial results before presentation to the Board. The Committee also I
reviewed the critical accounting policies, judgments and estimates applied in the preparation of the financial
statements.

The Committee also received reports from management on the accounting system and internal controls H
framework of the Company. Similarly, the Committee reviewed reports on key risks affecting the Company's I
operations, the related controls and assurance processes designed to manage and mitigate such risks. Thisisin I
addition to receiving regular updates on the Company’s controls and governance environment.

The Committee considered the proposed audit fee structure for the 2019 financial year and made appropriate
recommendations to the Board. H
The members of the statutory Audit Committee during the 2019 financial year are as follows: Mr. K.A. Saka, Mrs. I
0Q.T. Assan, Mr. 0.S. Olugbemi, Chief C.C. Chikeluba, Mr. G.A. Alegieuno and Mr. E.A. Anaba. [
The Committee met two (2) times during the year. The following table shows the attendance of the members of
the Committee at the meetings:

AUDIT MEETINGS: I
S/N NAME OF MEMBERS 18/3/2018 20/12/2019 TOTAL NO OF MEETINGS ATTENDED I
1. Mr. K.A Saka P P 2

2 Mrs. O.T. Assan P P yi |
3. Mr. O.S. Olugbemi P P 2 I
4 Chief C.C. Chikeluba P P 2 [
5, Mr. G.A_Alegieuno F P 2 |
6. Mr. E.A Anaba P P 2

P—Present | AWA-AbsentwithApology | N/A—NotApplicable ”

Senior management members are invited to brief the Committee on agenda items related to their areas of [
responsibilities. The engagement partner of the external auditor, SIAD was also present with other key members
of his team, whenever the need arises.

33. Code of Business Conduct and Code of Governance for Directors [
As a member of the society in which we operaie, we are not just interested in being the best performing I
consumer/pharmaceutical products Company, we are equally committed to our ambition to become the most
trusted and respected business in Nigeria. During the past year, the economic and commercial environment we
have operated in has been very volatile. It is in times like this that compliance and ethics grow ever more I
important as people want to trust the Company behind the brands they love. [
The Company has a Code of Business Conduct (CoBC) which is based on our purpose and values as an I
organisation. Atthe heart of our Code is a culture of "Acting with Personal Integrity” at all times as we engage with
internal and external stakeholders. The Code is applicable to all employees, Directors and business partners of
the Company. Our Code covers salient topics which include health, safety and personal security, bribery and I
corruption, responsible drinking, money laundering, discrimination and human rights, information management I
and security, quality, insider trading, conflict of interest, competition, data privacy, relationships with customers, H
suppliers and other business partners, external communications and social media amongst others.
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We apply the principles of fairness, integrity and transparency in all our business dealings as entrenched in our
CoBC and in line with international best practices. Training and communication programmes as well as
compliance monitoring mechanisms are in place to ensure that all relevant stakeholders remain aware of and
comply with the provisions of our Code and policies.

We also seek to create a culture in which employees feel comfortable raising concerns about potential breaches
of our Code or policies. We create an enabling atmosphere and expect anyone who comes across a breach to |
report it immediately, either through our confidential whistle blowing helpline Speak Up, to their Line Manager, to |
a member of the Controls, Compliance & Ethics team, the Human Resources or Legal team. All allegations are |
taken seriously and those that require action are investigated. Our response to proven breaches varies |
commensurately with the severity of the matter, and we monitor breaches to identify trends or common areas |
where further action may be required. I

34, Statement of Company’s Risk Management Policies and Practices

The Board of Directors has the responsibility of ensuring the maintenance of a sound system of internal control
and Risk management which it does through its Finance and Human Resources Committee and Risk
Management Committee. In compliance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission in 2011, Management provided assurance to the Board during the
financial year that the risk management control and compliance systems in Pharma-Deko Plc are operating
efficiently and effectively. |
On an annual basis, we undertake a holistic risk assessment to identify top internal and external existing or |
emerging risks which are thereafter ranked based on their likelihood of occurrence and their impact to the |
business. These risks are assigned to owners who are then tasked with ensuring that robust risk mitigation plans |
are in place to mitigate these risks. [

35. Auditors
The auditors, SIAO (Chartered Accountants), having indicated their willingness, will continue in office in

accordance with section 357(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, (CAMA) CAP C20 LFN 2004,

36.  Secretary I
The company secretary is Unity Trustees Limited. |
The annual report and financial statements set out on pages 28 to 61, which have been prepared on the going |
concern basis, were approved by the board of directors on 25" May 2020, and were signed on its behalf by: I

By Order of the Board

E SR e (-

Asia Elvis Evbaruovbokhanre [
FRC/2016/NBA/0000004224 I
Unity Trustees Limited
(Company Secretary)

1, Shagamu Avenue llupeju,
Lagos. H
Date: 25"May 2020 H



www.pharmadekoplc.com|

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL u

The directors are required in terms of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, Cap C20 LFN 2004 to I
maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial
statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the
financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and the |
results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial [
Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial I
statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are |
based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent l
judgements and estimates. I

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control
established by the company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To |
enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control [
aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation I
of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the
company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company's I
business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk |
management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk I
across the company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by
ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed
within predetermined procedures and constraints. I

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the H
system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the

preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only H
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. I

The directors have reviewed the company’s cash flow forecast for the year to December 31, 2020 and, in light of H
this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the company has or had access to adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. |

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the company's financial I
staternents. The financial statements have been examined by the company's external auditors and their report is
presented on pages 26 to 27.

The financial statements set out on pages 28 to 61, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were [
approved by the board of directors on 25" May 2020 and were signed on their behalf by: I

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors By:

'ﬁﬁ e — CRYry -

K.A.Lawson - Director Mr. G. A. Alegieuno -dLlirector
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000004354 FRC/2014/ ICANIHDIJ@f 007613 H




www.pharmadekoplc.com  CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 60(2) OF |
| INVESTMENT AND SECURITIES ACT NO. 29 OF 2007 |

On behalf of the Directors, we the undersigned hereby certify the following with regards to our Audited Financial |
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 that:

We have reviewed the report;
To the best of our knowledge, the report does not contain: |
] Any untrue statement of a material fact, or |

. Omit to state a material fact, which would make the statements misleading in the light of circumstances |
underwhich such statements were made:

To the best of our knowledge, the financial statement and other financial information included in this report fairly H
present in all material respects the financial condition and results of operation of the company as of, and |
for the periods presented in this report. |

We: |
® all are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls. I
® have designed such internal controls to ensure that material information relating to the Company is made H
known to all officers during the period in which the periodic reports are being prepared; |
. have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls as of date within 90 days prior to the
report; !
* have presented in the report our conclusions about the effectiveness of our internal controls based onour H

evaluation as of that date; H

We have disclosed to the auditors of the Company and Audit Committee: |

L all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which would adversely affectthe |
company'’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the |
company’s auditors any material weakness in internal controls, and H

. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have significant
role in the company’s internal controls;

We have identified in the report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or other factors |
that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our evaluation, including any corrective |
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. I

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 25" May 2020 by:

K.A. Lawson - Director G. A Alegieuno /Iiijracmr [
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000004354 FRC/2014/ICAY/00000007613 [




REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE """ Prermederopic.com

In accordance with the provisions of Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C20, Laws of I
the Federation of Nigeria 2004, we confirm that we have reviewed the audit plan and scope, and the
Management Letter on the audit of the accounts of the company and the responses to the said Letter.

In our opinion, the plan and scope of the audit for the year ended 31 December, 2019 were adequate. We have I
reviewed the External Auditors' findings and we are satisfied with the Management responses thereon.

We also confirm that the accounting and reporting policies of the company are in accordance with the legal |
requirements and ethical practices. [

Dated this 17"day of March, 2020

—mr K T E————— H
#

Alhaji K. A. Saka I
FRC/2015/NIM/00000011491
Chairman Audit Committee I

Members

Alhaji. K. A. Saka - Chairman I
Mr. C. C. Chikeluba H
Mr. E.A.Anaba

Mr. G.A. Alegieuno

Mr. O. S.0lugbemi [
Alhaja. O.T. Assan I
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholder of Pharma Deko Bic

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Phama Deks Plc set out
financial pesition as at December 31, 2019, and the statement of profit o
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ende
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly,
December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and cash flows for
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Campan

| Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act 2011

| The directors are responsible for the ot

We conducted our audit
are further described in t
independant of the compan
Professional Accountants (Parts A and B
audits of financial statements in Mi
Code and in accordance with other
evidence we have obtained is suffici

Basis for opinion

Other information

in all material respects, the financial position of Pharma Dako Pic as at
tha year then ended in accordance with International
ieg and Allisd Matters Act, Cap C20, LFN 2004 and the

Lagos: 18b Olu Holloway Road, Ikoyi, Lagos.
Tel: 01 463 0871-2 Fax: 01-463 D870 I

Abuja: 1st Floer, Bank of Industry Building |
Central District Area, FCT, Abuja.

Tel: 09-291 2462-3 l
E-mail: enquiries@siac-ng.com

Website: www.siao-ng.com l

an pages 13 to 44, which comprise the statement of I
r loss and other comprehensive income. statement of
d, and notes to the financial statements, including a I

in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards l
he Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial siatermeants gaction of our report. We are

¥ in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accou ntants Code of Ethics for l

) (IESBA Core) and other independence

geria. We have fulfiled our cther ethical respo
ethical requirements applicable to parforming audits in Nigeria. We bealieve that the sudit

ent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, l

requirements applicable to performing

nsibilities In accordance with the IESEA, l

her information. The other information comprises the Directors' Repart as required by I

the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C20, LFN 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Migeria Act 2011, which
| we obiained prior to the date of this report. Other information does not

report theraan.

Owr opinien on the financlal statements d
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial stateme
conaider whether the other
the audit, or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstatad, If,

is a material misstatement of this other information, we are re

W have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair
| International Financial Reperting Standards and the raguirem
2004, the Financial Reporiing Council of Migeria Act 2011
| necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemeants that are free from

errar.

| =1a

| The Audit Committee assists the Directors in discha

process

| Standards on Auditing will always detect =
and are considered material if, individuaily or in
| decisions of users taken on the basis of $heee

In preparing the financial statements, the directars are respensgible for
| going cancem, disclosing, as applicable, matters ralated to goin
unless the directors either intend to

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financlal Statements
Dyf objectives are to obtain reasonable sssurance sbos

o=s not cover the other information and we do not express an audit aginicn or any

Include the financial statements and cur auditors l

nts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, I

information I8 materially incoensistent with the financial staternents o our knowledge obtained in I
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there

quirad to report thal fact,

preseniation of the financial statements in accordance with |
ents of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C20, LFN
and for such

internal control as the directors detarmine is |
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or

233e35ing  the company's ability to continue a3 a |
ng the going concarn basis of accounting
. Or have no realistic alternative but to do |

g concern and usi
liquidate the company or lo ceass operations

rging their responsibilities for oversesing the Company’s financial reparting |

whether the Snancial siatemenis as a whole are fres from matenial
=50 an meor's report that includes our opinion. Reascnable ‘
assurance is a high level of assurance. bt = not 5 Duaranies That an sudit conducted in accordance with International

mEEna mEsistament wihen i exste Missisiements can drise from fraud or emmar ‘

= sogrecate S could recsonsbly be expecied to Influence the ecanomic
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| INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT - CONT'fi™*"2"madefopie.com

\ .".:
| SI1AQO : H

As part of an audit in accordance with ismatons Stenceete on Augtng. we sxeroise professional judgement and maintain [
| professional scepticism throughott the oot W e I

| s Identify and assess tha reke of majens messistemant of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procederss responsave o thoss risks, and obtain autil evidence that is sufficient and [
| appropriale to provide @ basis for our cpiman. The nisk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from I
fraud is higher than for one resuiting from smer, == #aud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, I
\ misreprasentations, ar the averride of internal control H
«  Obfain an understanding of intemal contral redevant fo the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
| appropriate in the circumstancss, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the I
company's intemai conirol.
‘ s Evaluste the appropriateness of sccounting policies used end the reasonableness of accounting estimates and I
related disclosures made by the direclors.
| = Conclude on the appropristeness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the I
| audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or canditions that may cast
gignificant doubt on the company's ability to continue as & going concern, |f we conclude that a matarial |
\ uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditar's repart to the related disclogures in the financial
staterments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our epinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit | I
l evidence obiained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
company 1o cesse to continue as a going concerm. I
‘ . Evaluate the overall presentathon, structure and content of the financial statements, including thie disclosures, and
whether the financial stalements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair I

| presentation. I

\ W communicate with the Audit Committes regarding, among other maters, the plannad scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including 2ny significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit. l

W also provide the Audit Committee with & staternent that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
| independence, and o communicate with them all relationships and othar matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independance, and where applicable. related safeguaras.

Erom the matters communicated with the Audit Committes, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
| audit of the financial statements of the curent vear and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe thase matters in our
auditor's report uniess law or reguiation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rara
\ circumatances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasanably be expected to outweigh the public interast benefits of such communication

Report en other legal and regulatory requirements

in accardance with the Financial Reporling Council of Migeria Act 2011 and the Companies and Allied Matters Act. Cap c20,
| Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004; we canfirm that:

| ] W hava obtained all the informiation and explanation which to the best of our knowledgs and bellef were necessary
for the purpose of the audil

| iy The Compary has kepl proper books of account, so far 25 appears from our examination of these books.

| i) The Campany's statement of financial position and the statement of profil or loss and other camprehensive income
are in agreement with the books of account and retums.

| For SIAD (Chartered Accountants)

| Joshua Ansa
Pariner
| FRC/2013NCAN/D0D00001T 28
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The financial staternents and the notes on pages 12 to 59, were approved by the board of directors on the 25"
May 2020, and were signed on its behalf by: I

) 0 oA

K.A. Lawson -Director Mr. G.A.Alﬁ'aieunn - Director |
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000004354 FRC/2014/C

N/00000007613 I

T H
Ayindeﬁd'B; boyega - Chief Financial Officer (Ag.) ”

FRC/2016/ICAN/00000013996 [

The accounting policies on pages 32 to 42 and the notes on pages 43 to 69 form an integral part of the financial H
statements.

www. pharmadekoplc.com I

| 7 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION H

| [

| Figures in Maira thousand MNote(s) 2019 2018 I
Assets

| Non-Current Assets H

\ Property, plant and equipment 3 1,733,933 1,812,288 I

I [

| Current Assets H
Inventories 5 293,330 255,224

| Trade and other receivables 6 116,401 169,522 |

| Other receivables and prepayment T 47 575 48,416 I

\ Cash and cash equivalents 8 6,163 37,687 I

| 463,469 510,849 H

| Total Assets 2,197 402 2,323137 i

| Equity and Liabilities |

| Equity I

| Share capital 9 108,466 108,466 H
Share premium 10 380,009 380,009

| Reserves 1 1,366,223 1,365,223 |

| Retained income (542.,225) (263.342) [

| 1,311,473 1,590,356 I

| Liabilities H

| Non-Current Liabilities |

| Retirement benefit obligation 12 228,816 168,920 [

| Deferred tax 13 18,071 18.071 I

| 246,887 186,991 |

| Current Liabilities |

I Trade and other payables 14 40,853 68,098 [

| Borrowings 15 15,000 50,000 I

| Currenttax payable 16 123,450 121,027 |
Other payables 17 459,739 306,665

| 639,042 545,790 |

| Total Liabilities 885,929 732,781 I

| Total Equity and Liabilities 2,197,402 2323137 I

|

\

\

I

|

|

|

|

|

|

\

\

|

l

|

|

|



Figures in Naira thousand
Revenue

Costofsales

Gross profit

Other operating income

Other operating gains (losses)
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Operating (loss)/profit
Finance costs

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Gains on property revaluation

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified

Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year net of taxation
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year

Earnings pershare
Per share information
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (kobo)

Note(s)
18
19

20
21
22
23

24
25

26

28

29

www.pharmadekoplc.com |

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2019 2018
484,574 1,023,806
(312,617) (622,439)
171,957 401,367
90,668 11,223
764 7
(87,837) (92,181)
(444 561) (575.461)
(269,009) (255,045)
(7.451) (938)
(276,460) (255,983)
(2,423) (9.277)
(278,883) (265,260)
- 137,545

- (13.754)

- 123,791

- 123,791
(278,883) (141,469)
(129) (122)

The accounting policies on pages 32 to 42 and the notes on pages 43 to 69 form an integral part of the financial

statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ”

Figures in Naira thousand Share capital Share premium Revaluation Retained Total equity |
reserve income I

Balance at January 1,2018 108,466 380,009 1,241,432 12,630 1.742 537
Loss for the year - - - (265,260) (265,260) |
Other comprehensive income - - 123.791 - 123,791 I
Total comprehensive Loss for the year - - 123,791 (265,260)  (141,469) I
Transfer between reserves - - - 129 129 [
Dividend Paid - - - (10,841) (10.841) [
[

Total contributions by and - - - (10,712) (10,712 |

distributions to owners of company [

recognised directly in equity H

Balance at January 1,2019 108,466 380,009 1,365,223 (263,342) 1,580,356 H
Loss forthe year - - - (278,883) (278,883) |
Total comprehensive Loss for the year - - - (278.883) (278.883) H
Balance at December 31, 2019 108,466 380,009 1,365,223 (542,225) 1,311,473 H

[
Note(s) 11828 28 I

|

|

\

\

|

|

\

|

!

|

I

\

\

|

\

\

\

!

\

|

\

I

\

\

l The accounting policies on pages 32 to 42 and the notes on pages 43 to 69 form an integral part of the financial |
| statements. |
|
\
|
\
|
!
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
\
\
|
|
|
|
|



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS www,pharmadekoplc.com |

Figures in Naira thousand Note(s) 2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities I

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 30 10,161 (47,434) I
Finance costs {7,451) (938) l
Tax paid 31 - {1.606) [
Net cash from operating activities 2,710 (49.978) |

Cash flows from investing activities |

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 - (14.459)

Cash flows from financing activities

Loans and borrowings (35,000) 50,000 I
Dividends paid 32 - (10.841) I
Net cash from financing activities (35,000) 39,159 I

[
Total cash movement for the year (32,290) (25,278) I
Cash atthe beginning of the year 37,687 62,958 |
Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances 765 7 H
Total cash atend of the year 8 6,162 37,687 H

The accounting policies on pages 32 to 42 and the notes on pages 43 to 69 form an integral part of the annual
report and financial statements.



ACCOUNTING POLICIES u

Corporate information I
The Company was incorporated as a private limited liability company in 1967 as PARKE-DAVIS & CO (NIG.)
LTD. In 1980, the Company changed its name to PHARMA DEKO LIMITED, and in pursuance of the Companies
and Allied Matters Act 2004, is now known as PHARMA DEKO PLC. The address of the company is Plot C1/1
Okene Close, Agbara Industrial Estate, Agbara, Ogun State. |
The company's principal activities include the manufacturing, packaging and marketing of high quality [
pharmaceutical and consumer products. The consumer and pharmaceutical products share the same [
production lines and the company leverages on this to ensure efficiency and effectiveness in its production I
process.

The company is also engaged in the use of its facilities for manufacturing and packaging services for third
parties. H
1. Significant accounting policies I
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. [
11 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with, and in compliance H
with, International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and International Financial Reporting Interpretations I
Committee ("IFRIC") interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing these financial statements and [
the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, Cap C20 LFN 2004. |

(b) Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost basis, unless otherwise stated in the |
accounting policies which follow. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in I
exchange for goods and services. I

These financial statements are presented in Naira, which is the company's functional currency. All financial
information presented in Maira has been rounded to the nearest thousand, except where otherwise indicated. |
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. [

1.2 Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating-decision maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the finance and general purpose H
committee that makes strategic decisions. [

The basis of segmental reporting has been setoutinnote 1.16

1.3  Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty H
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to time, to [
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of [
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on [
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected. ”

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies [
The critical judgements made by management in applying accounting policies, apart from those involving
estimations, that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, are

|
|
|
|
I
\
I
l
\
|
|
|
\
|
\
\
I
|
|
|
|
|
|
| (c) Functional and presentation currency
\
|
|
|
|
|
\
|
!
\
|
|
|
\
|
\
|
\
\
| outlined as follows:
|
\
|



ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONT'D  ""WPharmadekopic.com |

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) : H
Revenue recognition |
In making their judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenue set out in I
IFRS 15 and, in particular, whether the company had transferred control of the goods to the customer. Following
the detailed quantification of the company liability in respect of rectification work, and the agreed limitation on the
customer's ability to require further work or to require replacement of the goods, management are satisfied that H
control has been transferred and that recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate, in conjunction |
with the recognition of an appropriate warranty provision for the rectification costs. I

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment of financial assets ”
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss I
rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment [
calculation, based on the company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions and inputs used, refer to the individual
notes addressing financial assets. H

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete inventory [
Management assesses whether inventory is impaired by comparing its cost to its estimated net realisable value.
Where an impairment is necessary, inventory items are written down to net realisable value. The write down is
included in cost of sales. H

Fair value estimation I
Observable market data is used as inputs to the extent that it is available. Qualified external valuers are
consulted for the determination of appropriate valuation techniques and inputs.

Information about the specific techniques and inputs of the various assets and liabilities is disclosed in note and I
note |

Impairment testing

The company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management determine the I
recoverable amount by performing value in use and fair value calculations. These calculations require the use of |
estimates and assumptions. When it is not possible to determine the recoverable amount for an individual asset, H
management assesses the recoverable amount for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment |
Management assess the appropriateness of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each I
reporting period. The useful lives of motor vehicles, furniture and computer equipment are determined based on
company replacement policies for the various assets. Individual assets within these classes, which have a
significant carrying amount are assessed separately to consider whether replacement will be necessary outside H
of normal replacement parameters. The useful life of manufacturing equipment is assessed annually based on |
factors including wear and tear, technological obsolescence and usage requirements. I
When the estimated useful life of an asset differs from previous estimates, the change is applied prospectively in
the determination of the depreciation charge.

The useful life of the aluminium plant in Taarlton was assessed to be - years shorter than originally estimated. H
This is as a result of chemical deposits corroding the equipment more rapidly than previously assessed. The |
impact of the change has resulted in increased depreciation of M. - per annum for the current and following - I
reporting periods.

Provisions H
Provisions are inherently based on assumptions and estimates using the best information available. Additional |
disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note . I
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1.4 Property, plant and equipment I
Property, Plant and Equipment are tangible assets that can span more than one accounting period. These items
are stated at their original cost or fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, [

Land and Building is measured at fair value which is determined every two years. The fair value is determined by
engaging the services of an external professional valuer. |

Any increase as a result of the revaluation of Land and Building is recognised in other comprehensive Income I
and accumulated in Equity under the heading of Revaluation Surplus. However, the increase is recognised in

Profit or Loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease previously recognised in Profit or Loss. If the H
revaluation results to a decrease in the carrying amount of Land and Building, the decrease is recognised in profit [
or loss. However, the decrease is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of the asset. Any revaluation surplus remaining in Equity on disposal
of the asset is transferred to Retained Earnings. I

Plant and Machinery, Furniture and Fittings, Motor Vehicles and Computer Equipment are measured at cost.
The initial cost of these assets comprises its purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset into operation. I

The capitalised value of plant and machinery acquired via finance lease is also included within Property, Plant
and Equipment.

The useful lives of items of property. plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: I

Item Depreciation method Average useful life |
Buildings Straight line 50

Plantand machinery Straight line 10 H
Furniture and fixtures Straightline 6.67 |
Motor vehicles Straight line 5 H
Computer equipment Straight line 3

Land is not depreciated |

The useful lives and methods of depreciation of the assets are reviewed at each reporting period and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate. [

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly H
attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on
gualifying assets and adjustments in respect of hedge accounting, where appropriate. H

Impairment is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of an asset and its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. Impairment is
tested for when there is an indication of impairment such as; I

° Decline in the market value of an asset; I

® Changes in the technological, economic or legal environment resulting in an adverse effect on our |
activities;

. Obsolescence or damage of assets; f

® Warsening performance of assets. I

When there is an objective evidence of impairment, the loss is recognised in Profit or Loss except when there has
been a previous upward revaluation in which case the impairment loss is recognised directly in equity. f

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are determined as the difference

between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in Profit or Loss within
'otherincome’ or 'other expenses'. f

Asset in progress represents the company's investment in plant and machinery and other assets. Transfers are
made from assetin progress to respective asset class upon the arrival and installation of such property, plant and
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1.5  Fairvalue measurement : I
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure |
purposes, the fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction I
will take place either: in the principal market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous I
market.

Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming they act in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement |
is based on its highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for I
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. ”

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed at each I
reporting date and transfers between levels are determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level of input I
thatis significant to the fair value measurement.

For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise
is either not available or when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on
market knowledge and reputation. Where there is a significant change in fair value of an asset or liability from one I
period to another, an analysis is undertaken, which includes a verification of the major inputs applied in the latest H
valuation and a comparison, where applicable, with external sources of data.

1.6  Intangible assets I
Anintangible assetis recognised when:

. it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the |
entity; and
. the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. |

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when itis I
incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development {or from the development phase of an internal project) is I
recognised when:

itis technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale. I
there is anintention to complete and use or sell it.
there is an ability to use or sell it.

it will generate probable future economic benefits. [
there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or H
sell the asset.

° the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. |

Intangible assets are carried at costless any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. |

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not |
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an |
indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight
line basis over their useful life. |

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an I
indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying I
amount is amortised over its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not I
recognised as intangible assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as H
follows:

Item Useful life H
Computer software Jyears
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1.7 Financial instruments I

Financial instruments held by the company are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial i
Instruments.

Broadly, the classification possibilities, which are adopted by the company ,as applicable, are as follows: I

Financial assets which are equity instruments: |

» Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss; or I

& Designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income. (This designation is not available to |
equity instruments which are held for trading or which are confingent consideration in a business
combination). H

Financial assets which are debtinstruments: I

. Amortised cost. (This category applies only when the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on
specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal, and where |
the instrument is held under a business model whose objective is met by holding the instrument to collect |
contractual cash flows); or

. Fair value through other comprehensive income. (This category applies only when the contractual terms
of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and |
interest on principal, and where the instrument is held under a business model whose objective is |
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the instruments); or

» Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss. (This classification automatically applies to all debt
instruments which do not qualify as at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive |
income}; or I

" Designated at fair value through profit or loss. (This classification option can only be applied when it

eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch).

Derivatives which are not part of a hedging relationship: I
» Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss.

° Amortised cost; or I

L Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss. (This applies to contingent consideration in a business H
combination or to liabilities which are held for trading); or

® Designated at fair value through profit or loss. (This classification option can be applied when it |

eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch; the liability forms part of a group of financial |
instruments managed on a fair value basis; or it forms part of a contract containing an embedded I
derivative and the entire contract is designated as at fair value through profit or loss).

Note 35 Financial instruments and risk management presents the financial instruments held by the company |
based on their specific classifications.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. |
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within |
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The specific accounting policies for the classification, recognition and measurement of each type of financial |
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Financial instruments (continued)
Trade and other receivables I

Classification |
Trade and other receivables, excluding, when applicable, VAT and prepayments, are classified as financial I
assets subsequently measured at amortised cost (note 6). I

They have been classified in this manner because their contractual terms give rise, on specified dates to cash I
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, and the company's business I
model is to collect the contractual cash flows on trade and other receivables,

Recognition and measurement I
Trade and other receivables are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of I
the receivables. They are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. l

The amortised cost is the amount recognised on the receivable initially, minus principal repayments, plus I
cumulative amortisation (interest) using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. [

Trade and other payables
Classification |
Trade and other payables (note 14), excluding VAT and amounts received in advance, are classified as financial I
liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Recognition and measurement I
They are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions, and are measured, at I
initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. I

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating

interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated |
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective [
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial I
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

If trade and other payables contain a significant financing component, and the effective interest method results in [
the recognition of interest expense, then itis included in profit or loss in finance costs (note 25). I

Trade and other payables expose the company to liquidity risk and possibly to interest rate risk. Refer to note 35 |
for details of risk exposure and management thereof. I

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at carrying amount which is deemed to be fair value. I
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1.8  Tax I

Currenttax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already
paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised [
as an asset. I

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to |
(recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively I
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities I
Adeferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred I
tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the

transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). |

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that I
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax

asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction atthe time |
of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). I

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. [

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or |
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. [

Tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, I
exceptto the extent that the tax arises from: I

. a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive I
income, or
® a business combination. I

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items
that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income. |

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited
or charged, in the same or a different period, directly in equity.

1.9  Inventories I
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making adequate provision for obsolete,

slow moving and damaged items. In case of goods manufactured by the Company, cost includes production |
overheads. Stock is valued at weighted average cost and goods in transit at the invoice price. Work- in- progress |
is stated at cost. Cost in this case consists of direct labour and materials plus appropriate proportion of factory H
overheads.

MNet realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of I
completion and selling expenses.

110 Impairmentofassets |
The company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be I
impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the company also: |
. tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for
impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test
is performed during the annual period and at the same time every period. I
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1.10 Impairment of assets (continued) I
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual

asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of |
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined. [

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use. |

Ifthe recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
toits recoverable amount. That reduction is animpairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised I
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued assetis treated as a revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in H
prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication I
exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated. I

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss |
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised [
for the assetin prior periods. I

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other |
than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is [
treated as a revaluation increase. I

1.11  Share capital and equity H
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all I
ofits liabilities.

Ordinary shares are recognised at par value and classified as 'share capital’ in equity. Any amounts received
from the issue of shares in excess of par value is classified as 'share premium' in equity. Dividends are |
recognised as a liability in the year in which they are declared. I

1.12 Taxation H
i Company Income taxation [
Income tax payable is provided on taxable profit at the current statutory rate. I

i Education tax ”
Education tax expenses are recognized in the profit and loss account. Current education tax is the expected tax [
payable on the taxable income for the period, using statutory tax rates at the statement of financial position date I

iil. Deferred taxation |
Deferred Taxation, which arises from timing differences in the recognition of items for accounting and tax I
purposes, is calculated using the liability method. Based on the IFRS provisions, IAS 12, liability method
recognizes all timing differences as temporary differences. Temporary differences are differences between the
tax base of an asset or liability and its carrying amount in the Statement of Financial Position. The tax base of an |
asset or liability is the amount attributed to that asset or liability for tax purposes. The measurement of deferred [
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets shall reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in H
which Pharma Deko Plc expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the rates that are expected to |
apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have [
been enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date. Deferred tax assets are recognized when it is I
considered probable (more likely than not) that those assets will be recovered.



i pnamaceiopEean  pGCOUNTING POLICIES = CONT'D |

1.13 Foreign currency transaction I
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Naira at the ruling rates of exchange at the
date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported at the
prevailing exchange rate at the statement of Financial Position date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in I
exchange rates is charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. I

1.14 Employee benefits |
The Company provides a contributory pension fund scheme which is funded by contributions from employees at |
8% and employer at 10% based on basic salary, housing and transport allowance in line with the Pension Reform H
Act of 2014 effective July 1, 2014. The employers' contribution is charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss and

Comprehensive income, Contributions are expensed in the period they are payable and any unpaid contribution |
at the end of the period are recognised as a liability. I

The Company also operates an unfunded non-contributory gratuity scheme. Employee final benefit on this H
scheme is determined based on the employee’s year of service and terminal Salary. This applies to employees [
whao retire, resign or are made redundant or the company terminates their appointment as aforesaid. It does not I
apply to employees who are dismissed from the company.

1.15 Provisions and contingencies I
Provisions are recognised when:

] the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

L it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the I
obligation; and I

® areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. [
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, I
the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be

received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount |
recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. I

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. H

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and I
measured as a provision.

Aconstructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: I

. has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: H
> the business or part of a business concermed;
» the principal locations affected; I
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for I
terminating their services;
> the expenditures that will be undertaken; and |
» when the plan will be implemented; and [
8 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to I

implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that are recognised I
separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
® the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation. [

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note
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1.16 Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed from time to time by the I
management of the Company to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its I
perfarmance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company’s operating segmenits are as follows: [
Pharma: This refers to the pharmaceutical product of the Company.
Consumer:  This refers to the production of beverages: and |

Contract; This refers to the use of the Company’s facility for manufacturing and packaging of services to third
parties. [

Segment results that are reported to the Board include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise all assets, liabilities and income tax
assets and liabilities that cannot be traced to the above segments with reasonable accuracy. I

1.17 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits |
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as [
paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised I
inthe period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services [
that increase their entittement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. I

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or |
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance. I

Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. I
Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined I
contribution plans where the company's obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined I
contribution retirement benefit plan.

Defined benefit plans I
The Company operates an unfunded non-contributory gratuity scheme. Employee final benefit on this scheme is

determined based on the employee’s vear of service and terminal Salary. This applies to employees who retire, |
resign or are made redundant or the company terminates their appointment as aforesaid. It does not apply to I
employees who are dismissed from the company. The Company operates an unfunded non-contributory gratuity I
scheme. Employee final benefit on this scheme is determined based on the employee’s year of service and
terminal Salary. This applies to employees who retire, resign or are made redundant or the company terminates
their appointment as aforesaid. It does not apply to employees who are dismissed from the company. I

The management and audit committee are of the view that actuarial valuation was not necessary in view of the i
nature of the gratuity.
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1.18 Revenue
Sales of goods [

The sales of good comprises of pharmaceutical goods and consumer goods. Revenue from the sale of these
goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, |
net of returns, trade discounts, sales tax and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised upon the exit of goods from |
the company's warehouse given the availability of adequate goods-in-transit insurance. Revenue is recognised
when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, collection is probable and the costs incurred or to be
incurred can be measured reliably. [

Rendering of services

The rendering of services involves the use of the Company’s facilities for manufacturing and packaging of goods |
for third parties. Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, collection is |
probable, costs incurred and cost to complete can be measured reliably and stage of completion can be
ascertained at end of the reporting period. The stage of completion is determined by using the surveys of work H
completed.

1.19 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation represents a component of the company's principal business that is a separate major |
line of business or geographical area of operations that has been disposed of oris held for sale. Classificationas ||
a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held H
forsale, if earlier.

Profit or loss from discontinued operations is presented in a single amount in the income statement. This amount |
is the post-tax profit or loss of discontinued operations.

1.20 Earnings pershare [

The Company presents Basic Earmnings per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The Basic EPS is |
determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. |

1.21 Dividend

Dividend on ordinary shares are appropriated from retained earnings and recognized as a liability in the period in
which they are declared. Dividends that are proposed but not yet declared are disclosed in the notes to the |
financial statements. I

1.22 Costofsales |
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the periodin |
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable valueand |
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of

any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a |
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. I

The related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost of sales.

Contract costs comprise: [
® costs that relate directly to the specific contract;

. costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract; and H
. such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the customer under the terms of the contract. [

Cost of sales is reduced by the amount recognised in inventory as a "right to returned goods asset" which
represents the company's right to recover products from customers where customers exercise their right of |
return under the company returns policy. I
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2, New Standards and Interpretations

21 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year [
In the current year, the company has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the I
current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments I
The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in |AS 12 when there is

uncertainty over income tax treatments. Specifically, if it is probable that the tax authorities will accept the |
uncertain tax treatment, then all tax related items are measured according to the planned tax treatment. Ifitis not |
probable that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax treatment, then the tax related items are measured

on the basis of probabilities to reflect the uncertainty. Changes in facts and circumstances are required to be |
treated as changes in estimates and applied prospectively. I

The effective date of the interpretation is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2019. H

The company expects to adopt the interpretation for the first time in the 2019 annual report and financial I
statements.

Theimpact of the interpretation is not material. I

IFRS 16 Leases ”
IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard which replaces |IAS 17 Leases, and introduces a single lessee accounting [
model. The main changes arising from the issue of IFRS 16 which are likely to impact the company are as H
follows:

Company as lessee: [
. Lessees are required to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except short I
term leases or leases where the underlying asset has a low value, which are expensed on a straight line

or other systematic basis. I
® The cost of the right-of-use asset includes, where appropriate, the initial amount of the lease liability, I
lease payments made prior to commencement of the lease less incentives received; initial direct costs of
the lessee; and an estimate for any provision for dismantling, restoration and removal related to the I
underlying asset. [
- The lease liability takes into consideration, where appropriate, fixed and variable lease payments;
residual value guarantees to be made by the lessee, exercise price of purchase options; and payments I
of penalties for terminating the lease. I
& The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured on the cost model at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. However, right- I
of-use assets are measured at fair value when they meet the definition of investment property and all I
other investment property is accounted for on the fair value model. If a right-of-use asset relates to a
class of property, plant and equipment which is measured on the revaluation model, then that right-of- I
use asset may be measured on the revaluation model. |

® The lease liability is subsequently increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and re-measured
for reassessments or modifications. I
] Re-measurements of lease liabilities are affected against right-of-use assets, unless the assets have I
been reduced to nil, in which case further adjustments are recognised in profit or loss.
. The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised payments at a revised rate when there is a |
change inthe lease term or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. I
% The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised lease payments at the original discount rate

when there is a change in the amounts expected to be paid in a residual value guarantee or when there is |
a change in future payments because of a change in index or rate used to determine those payments. |

L Certain lease modifications are accounted for as separate leases. When lease modifications which
decrease the scope of the lease are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, then the lessee |
re-measures the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right of lease asset to reflect the I
full or partial termination of the lease. Any gain or loss relating to the full or partial termination of the lease
is recognised in profit or loss. For all other lease modifications which are not required to be accounted for |
as separate leases, the lessee re-measures the lease liability by making a corresponding adjustment to I
the right-of-use asset.

% Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities should be presented separately from other assets and liabilities. |
If not, then the line item in which they are included must be disclosed. This does not apply to right-of-use I
assets meeting the definition of investment property which must be presented within investment
property. IFRS 16 contains different disclosure requirements compared to IAS 17 leases. |

Company as lessor:
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2. New Standards and Interpretations (continued) [
sAccounting for leases by lessors remains similar to the provisions of 1AS 17 in that leases are classified as I
either finance leases or operating leases. Lease classification is reassessed only if there has been a

modification. |

® A modification is required to be accounted for as a separate lease if it both increases the scope of the I
lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and the increase in consideration is
commensurate to the stand alone price of the increase in scope.

] If a finance lease is modified, and the modification would not qualify as a separate lease, but the lease I
would have been an operating lease if the modification was in effect from inception, then the modification I
is accounted for as a separate lease. In addition, the carrying amount of the underlying asset shall be
measured as the net investment in the lease immediately before the effective date of the modification. H
IFRS 9is applied to all other modifications not required to be treated as a separate lease. [

» Modifications to operating leases are required to be accounted for as new leases from the effective date
of the modification. Changes have also been made to the disclosure requirements of leases in the
lessor's financial statements. I

Sale and leaseback transactions: |

® In the event of a sale and leaseback transaction, the requirements of IFRS 15 are applied to consider
whether a performance obligation is satisfied to determine whether the transfer of the asset is accounted [
for as the sale of an asset. I

» If the transfer meets the requirements to be recognised as a sale, the seller-lessee must measure the
new right-of use asset at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the |
right-of-use retained. The buyer-lessor accounts for the purchase by applying applicable standards and [
for the lease by applying IFRS 16

. If the fair value of consideration for the sale is not equal to the fair value of the asset, then IFRS 16
requires adjustments to be made to the sale proceeds. When the transfer of the asset is not a sale, then I
the seller-lessee continues to recognise the transferred asset and recognises a financial liability equal to I
the transfer proceeds. The buyer-lessor recognises a financial asset equal to the transfer proceeds.

The company has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2019 annual report and financial statements.
The impact of the standard is not material. I

22 Standards and interpretations not yet effective H

|

\

|

|

|

|

\

|

|

|

|

|

\

\

I

\

|

|

|

\

|

\

\ The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after January 1, 2019. |
|

|

|

|

| There is none applicable to the company |
\
|
\
\
I
|
|
|
|
\
|
\
\
I
|
|
|
|
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3. Property, plant and equipment
2019 2018
Costor  Accumulated  Carrying Costor  Accumulated Carrying
revaluation depreciation value revaluation  depreciation value
Land 606,160 - 606,160 606,160 - 606,160
Buildings 655,365 (13,259) 642,106 655,365 - 655,365
Plant and machinery 522,727 (122,723) 400,004 521,824 (71,445) 450,379
Furniture and fixtures 10,002 (6,162) 3,840 10,002 (4,886) 5116
Motor vehicles 98,761 (94,153) 4 608 98,761 (81,943) 16,818
Computer equipment 11,781 (11.436) 345 11,781 (10,201) 1,580
Assetin progress 76,870 - 76,870 76,870 - 76,870
Total 1,981,666  (247,733) 1,733,933 1,980,763 (168,475) 1,812,288
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019
Asat1Jan. Depreciation Asat31Dec.
Land 606,160 - 606,160
Buildings 655,365 (13,259) 642,106
Plant and machinery 450,379 (51,279) 400,004
Furniture and fixtures 5116 (1,276) 3,840
Motor vehicles 16,818 (12,210) 4,608
Computer equipment 1,580 (1,235) 345
Assetin progress 76.870 - 76,870
1,812,288 (79.259) 1,733,933
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment -2018
Asat1Jan. Additions Transfers Revaluations Depreciation Asat31Dec.
Land 485,612 - - 120,548 - 606,160
Buildings 651,667 - - 16,999 (13,301) 655,365
Plant and machinery 349,008 13,640 132634 - (44.903) 450,379
Furniture and fixtures 5,845 523 - - {1,252) 5,116
Motor vehicles 31,688 - - - (14,870) 16,818
Computer equipment 2,790 296 - - (1,5086) 1,580
Assetin progress 209,504 - (132,634 - - 76,870
1.736.114 14,459 - 137.547 (75.832) 1,812,288
4. Intangible assets
2019 2018 :
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying Cost/  Accumulated Carrying
Valuation amoriisation value  \aluation  amorisation value
Computer software, other 2,197 (2,197) - 2,197 (2.197) -
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018
Opening
balance Amortisation Total
Computer software, other 244 (244) =
@5
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5. Inventories I

Raw materials 78.831 85,329 H

Finished goods 120,640 a7v.579 i
Consumables 23,129 24 546

Packaging materials 70,730 57.770 |

293,330 255,224 I

l

Included in the finished goods is Parkalin Dry Cough valued at about =N=45 millons I

|

Included in the raw material is Codeine Phosphate valued at about =N=58 millions. H

6. Trade and other receivables |

Trade receivables 116,401 169,522 |

Total trade and other receivables 116,401 169,522 [

Trade Receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a 30 day term. Trade receivables are measured I
atamortised cost.

7. Other receivables and prepayment

Staff debtors = 1,147 ”
Sundry receivables 19,842 19,660 I
Prepayment 3,103 3,914 |
Deposit forimport 24 630 23,695 I

47,575 48.416 |

Included in sundry receivables is the unpaid amount of the Company shares alloted to interested employees of
the Company in 2002. Interested employees of the Company were alloted the company's shares with an
agreement that the alloted shares would be paid for by deducting the shares amount from the employees exit |
entitlement. The value of this transaction, N2,127,000, has been determined by multiplying the market value of I
the shares (as at grant date) by the number of shares alloted to the employees. [

The prepayments comprises of payment made for rent and insurance (Life Assuarance and Industry Risk
Insurance).

B. Cash and cash equivalents |
Cash and cash equivalents consist of: I
Cashonhand - 27 I
Bank balances 6,163 37,660 I
6.163 37.687 I

9. Share capital !
Authorised H
300,000,000 ordinary shares of 50k each 150,000 150,000 |
[

Issued and fully paid I
216,931,596 ordinary shares of 50k each 108,466 108,466 H
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Figures in Naira thousand 2019 2018 I

10. Share premium I

Share premium 380,009 380,009 |
1. Revaluation reserve H
AsatJan1 1,365,223 1,241,432 ”
Transferred revaluation surplus on revalued/ (disposed) asset{net of tax) - 123,791 I
AsatDec 31 1,365,223 1,365,223 [

In line with |1AS 16, the revaluation surplus of N123.8 million (net of tax) realised on the revalued property plant
and equipment was credited to revaluation reserve in 2018.

12. Retirement benefits l

AtJanuary 1 168,920 95 752 l
Charge forthe year 62,415 88,938 |
Payments during the year (2.519) (15,770) I
At December 31 228,816 168,920

The Management and the Audit Committee are of the view that actuarial valuation was not necessary in view of
the nature of the gratuity. [

13. Deferred tax I

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law I
allows net settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the statement of financial position as follows:

Deferred tax liability (18,071} (18.071) H

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset/ (liability) [

At beginning of year (18,071) (4,318) I

Increases (decrease)in tax loss available for set off against future taxable income - I

gross of valuation allowance - {13.755)
(18,071) (18.071) ”

14.  Trade and other payables [

Financial instruments: I
Trade payables 40,853 68,098

Trade payables are measured at amortised cost. However, because the trade payables are non-interest bearing
and have a setftlement period of three months hence they are stated atthe invoice amount. I

15. Borrowings |
Held at amortised cost I
Promissory note 15,000 50,000

Borrowings relate to a 90 day promissory note at 22.5% obtained from United Investments Limited and one of the
directors during the year. I
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Figuresin Naira thousand 2019 2018 I

16. Current tax payable H

Company tax Education tax Capital gain Total |

tax [

[

AtJanuary 1 21,066 45 99,916 121,027 i
Charge for the year (minimum tax) 2423 - - 2423

At December 31 23,489 45 99,916 123,450 I

The charge for taxation in this financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2019 is based on the I
provisions of the Companies Income TaxAct, CAP C21, LFN 2004.

The education tax is based on 2% of assessable profit for the period. I

17. Other payables

Sundry creditors ( note 17.1) 157,433 82,181 ”
Accruals 151,358 124,165 I
VAT payable 23,765 13,519 I
Employee benefits — unremitted contribution (17.2) 127,413 86,799 H
459,96 306,664 i
17.1  Sundry creditors [
Other creditors 831 831 I
Industrial training fund (ITF) 16,585 14,412 H
Union dues 1,167 471
Witholding tax on dividend 231 231 |
Witholding tax on services 46,460 45,315 [
Pay as you earn (PAYE) 5,429 1,206 I
Salaries and wages payable 66,680 1,967 H
NSITF 15,064 12,892
Dividend payable (17.3) 4,856 4,856 |
157,303 82,181 [
[
17.2 Employee benefits — unremitted contribution H
AtJanuary 1 86,799 76,976
Charge for the year 44 530 42,949 |
Remittances during the year (3.916) (33.126) |
At December 31 127,413 86,799 I

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme wherein both the Company and the employees
contribute 10% and 8% respectively of the employee’s total emolument (basic pay, housing and transport H
allowance) to a Pension Fund Administrator. As at 31 December 2019, the Company had a liability of N127 |
million (2018: N87 million) as unremitted pension contribution under this scheme. I

17.3  Dividend payable ”

At January 1 4,856 900 |
Returned dividend - 4,085 |
Unclaimed dividend transferred to retained income - (129) I
At December 31 4,856 4,856




Figures in Naira thousand

18. Revenue
Pharma
Consumer

19. Costofsales
Pharma

Consumer

Manufactured goods:
Depreciation and impairment

20. Other operating income
Interest income

Arbitration income
Miscellaneous income

www.pharmadekoplc.com |
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2019 2018
70,245 580,026
414,329 443,780
484,574 1,023,806
45,600 244,869
201,576 319,366
65,441 58,204
312,617 622,439
597 101 H
90,000 -
71 11,122
90,668 11,223

Arbitration Income represents the amount awarded and payment made in farvour of the company with respect to |

a canceled contract by Guinness Nigeria Plc.

21. Other operating gains (losses)
Foreign exchange gains (losses)
Net foreign exchange gains

22.  Selling and distribution expenses
Advert and publicity

Rebate and promotion

Distribution and freight

764 ¥ |

|
12.780 17.263 |
51,574 40,611 ‘
23.483 34,307 |
87,837 92,181 |
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Figures in Naira thousand

23. Administrative expenses
Auditfee

Bank charges

Consulting and professional fees
Donations

Entertainment

Insurance

Rent

MNewspaper

Transport and traveling

Motor vehicle expenses

Postage

Printing and stationery

Repairs and maintenance
Agbara estate charge

Security

Miscellaneous expense

AGM expenses

Personnel cost {note 23.1)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Director's benefit (note 23.2)
Secretarial fees

Judgment debt

Subscriptions

23.1 Personnelcost

Staff salary

Staff gratuity

Staff welfare

Medical expenses

Staff training and development
Pension

23.2 Director's benefit
Directors travelling allowance
Directors emoluments - fees
Directors sitting allowance
Other expenses

24, Operating profit (loss)

Operating (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst others:

Auditor's remuneration - external
Audit fee (net of VAT)

The auditor did not supply any other service to the company.

2019 2018 |
[
4 950 4725 l
521 1,051 H
15,591 26,831 :
= 262
169 766 [
8,667 10,363 I
1,810 1,500 i
. 61
1,024 2,906 I
1,438 2.318 H
2,868 4,337 |
875 2199
1,603 10,303 I
8,859 11,047 I
5,125 16,556 i
821 604
2,723 2773 |
323,936 406,994 [
13,818 17.871 I
45 550 32,863
4,188 5235 |
S 13,896 [
2D = N
444 561 575,461 H
[
180,823 213,019 H
62,416 88,938
50,127 76,061 |
2,953 5,554 [
1,872 1,292 I
25,745 22 130 H
323,936 406,994 H
[
20,000 17,500 H
1,650 1,450
23,900 13,154 I
. 759 I
45,550 32,863 i
[
[
[
4,500 4,500 |
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Figures in Naira thousand 2019 2018° I
24, Operating profit (loss) (continued)

Remuneration, other than to employees H

Consulting and professional services 15,591 26,831 |
Secretarial services 4,188 5235 I
19,779 32,066 H
Employee costs H
|
Personnel cost and director's benefit 226,373 245 882 I
Staff salary 180,823 213,019 H
Staff gratuity 62,416 88,938
Staffwelfare 50,127 76,061 ”
Medical expense 2,953 5,554 |
Stafftraining and development 1,872 1,292 I
Pension 25,745 22,130 H
Total employee costs 550,309 652,876 |
Average number of persons employed during the year |
Administration - 7 I
Other staff - 103 |
- 110

The table shows the number of employees whose earnings during the year fell within the ranges shown |
below: I

N830,001 - N1,080,000 45 47 H
N1,080,001 -N1,350,000 1 2
N1,350,001 -N1,880,000 25 25 I
N1,880,001 - N2,430,000 16 19 [
N2,430,001 - N4,000,000 9 10 H
N4,000,001 - N5,950,000 4 4

N5,950,001 - N7,000,000 - ] ”
N7,000,001 - N8,950,000 i ) H

N8,950,001 and above 3 3 |

103 110 I
Depreciation and amortisation H
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 79,259 76,075 I
Total depreciation and amortisation 79,259 76,075 |
Less: Depreciation and amortisation included in cost of merchandise sold and H
inventories (65.441) (58,204) |
Total depreciation and amortisation expensed 13,818 17.871 I

25. Finance costs
Current borrowings 7.451 938

Finance cost relates to interest on promissory note issued by the company to United Investment Lid and a |
director. |
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Figures in Naira thousand
26. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense

Current
Company income tax

Reconciliation of the tax expense

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.
Accounting (loss)/profit

Tax atthe applicable tax rate of 30% (2018: 30%)

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit

Adjustment to tax in respect of prior periods - loss relief
Otheritems - effect of minimum tax option

2019 2018 |

[

[

[

[

2423 0277 |

[

[

[

[

(276,460)  (255983) |

[

(82,938) (76.795)

[

41,747 44,779 |

41,191 32016 |

2423 9,277 I
2,423 9,277
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27. Operating segments I
Pharma Deko Plc is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of high quality pharmaceutical and consumer

products. The Company has three reportable segments which serve as the Company's strategic business units.
These operating segments are assessed and strategic decisions are made on the basis of operating segment I
results. The following summary describes the operations in each of the reportable segments: I

Pharma: This refers to the pharmaceutical products of the Company; |
Consumer: This refers to the production of beverages and,; |

Contract: This refers to the use of the Company's facility for manufacturing and packaging of goods and H
services to third parties. I

Due to the nature of the Company's operations and the relationship among the above segments (sharing of H
production lines), the assets and the liabilities of the Company cannot be determined on a segmental basis and
does not form part of the information provided to management for segmental review. Hence, such information is
notdisclosed as part of operating segments.

Also Administrative Expenses and Interest Expenses are distributed proportionately to all segments due to the |

reason mentioned above.

2019 Pharma Consumer Total

External revenue (segment revenue) 70.245 414,329 484,574 I
Raw materials & other consumables (45,600) (201,576) (247,176) H
Depreciation (12,052) (63,389) (65,441) I
Selling and distribution expenses (12,733) (75,104) (87,837)

Admin. expenses (64,444) (380,117) (444 561) [
Interest expense {1.080) {6,371) (7.451) I
Segment profit/(loss) before income tax (65,664) (302,228) (367,892) H
2018 Pharma Consumer Total |
External revenue (segment revenue) 580,026 443,780 1,023,806 H
Raw materials & other consumables (244 869) (319,366) (564,235)
Depreciation (25,260) (32,944) (58,204) I
Selling and distribution expenses (52,224) (39,957 (92,181) I
Admin. expenses (326,021) (249.440) (575.,461)

Interest expense (531) (407) (938) ”
Total profit/(loss) for segments (68,879) (198,334) (267,213) [
Reconciliation of operating segment revenue to company revenue 2019 2018 H
Revenue for segments 484,574 1,023,806 I
Discontinued operations - - I
Company revenue 484,574 1,023,806 |
Reconciliation of operating segment profit/(loss) to company profit/(loss) before [
tax

Total profit/(loss) for segments (367,892) (267,213) H
Sales of scrap 71 11,122 |
Profit (loss) on exchange differences 764 7 I
Arbitration income 80,000 - H
Interestincome 597 101
Company profit/(loss) before income tax _(276.460) (255,983) I

28. Other comprehensive income

Components of other comprehensive income - 2019
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|
\
| 28.  Other comprehensive income (continued) I
| Components of other comprehensive income - 2018 I
|

Gross Tax Net
Items that will not be reclassified to profit (loss) |
Movements on revaluation H
Gains (losses) on property revaluation 137,545 (13,754) 123791 |

Basic (loss) earnings per share
From continuing operations (kobo per share) {129) (122) |
From discontinued operations (kobo per share) - -

|
|
|
|
| 29.  Earnings pershare I
|
|
|
|

(129) (122) |

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share was based on the profit/(loss) for the year and weighted I
average number of ordinary shares outstanding: I

Reconciliation of profit or loss for the year to basic earnings

|

|

!

i Profit or loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent (278,883) (265,260) H
| 30. Cash generated from/(used in) operations [
| Profit (loss) before taxation (276,460) (255,983) I
| Adjustments for: H

Depreciation and amortisation 79,259 76,075
| Gains on foreign exchange (764) {7) H
| Finance costs 7,451 g3 |
\ Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 59,896 73,168 [
| Changes in working capital: I
| Inventories (38,106) (26,445) H
Trade and other receivables 53,121 (37,759)

| Otherreceivables and prepayment B41 119,979 H
| Trade and other payables (27,246) (14,764) |
l Other payables 152,169 17.364 I
\ 10,161 (47.434) I
| 3. Tax paid H
| Balance at beginning of the year (121,027)  (113356) |
| Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss (2,423) {(9,277) |
! Balance atend of the year 123,450 121,027 I
| - —(1.606) @
| 32. Dividends paid H
Dividends - (10,841) |

33. Capital commitments [
There are no material commitment for capital expenditure not provided for in these financial statements. I



www,pharmadekoplc.com |

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS = CONTD '

|
|
|
\ Figures in Naira thousand 2019 2018° I
|
|
\

34. Related parties I
Related party transactions I
The Chairman of the Board of Directors is related to: |
(1} The Legal Adviser to the Company - Chief Rotimi Williams Chambers. In 2019, services valued at |

N8,514,142 (2018: N1,550,000) was rendered to the company by the Chambers. [
(ii) The Secretary to the Company - Unity Trustees Limited. The value of services rendered to the company [

during the year was N4,187,500 (2018: N5,310,000). I

Mr. Alegieuno I
The company's guest house located at Awka close, Agbara Estate belongs to Mr. Alegieuno, a Director of the I

Company. The rent of the guest house was negotiated at N1,500,000 per annum, payable in advance. |

Compensation to directors and other key management |

Short-term directors' benefits 45,550 32.863 |
Fees - chairman 250 250 |
Fees - otherdirectors 1,200 1,200 |
Emoluments as executives 33.913 33.913 H

35,363 35,363 ”

The number of Directors excluding the Chairman whose emoluments were within
the following ranges were:

N55,000,000 - N7,000,000 : . ”
N7,000,001-N9,000,000 - - H
N9,000,001 -N12,000,000 1
N12,000,000 and above 1

M.—A-.—L

Transaction with key personnel
The key management personnel of the company comprises of both the board of directors and the management
team.

Short term benefits (board of directors)

Fees: |
Chairman 250 250 I
Otherdirectors 1.200 1.200 |
1.450 1.450 |

Other emoluments: |
Chairman - - I
Otherdirectors 17,500 17,500 |
17.500 17,500 i
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35. Financial instruments and risk management H
Categories of financial instruments I

Categories of financial assets

2019 |
Note(s) Amortised Total Fairvalue |
cost I
Trade and other receivables 6 116,401 116,401 116,401 I
Cash and cash equivalents 8 6,163 6,163 6,163
122,564 122,564 122,564 |
[
2018 I
MNote(s) Amortised Total Fairvalue
cost H
Trade and other receivables 6 169,522 169,522 169,522 I
Cash and cash equivalents 8 37,687 37,687 37.687 |
207,209 207,209 207,209 I
Categories of financial liabilities H
2019 I
MNote(s) Amortised Total Fairvalue I
cost H
Trade and other payables 14 40,852 40,852 -
Borrowings 15 __ 15,000 15,000 : ”
55,852 55,852 - |
[
2018 H
Mote(s) Amortised Total Fairvalue
cost |
Trade and other payables 14 68,098 68,098 - [
Borrowings 15 50,000 50,000 - I
118,098 118,098 -
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36. Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments I
(i) Creditrisk |
(i) Liquidity risk
(iii) Market risk I

This note presents information about the company's exposure to each of the above risks, the company's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the company's management of capital.
Further guantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements. [

36.1 Riskmanagementframework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk |
management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for I
developing and monitoring the company’s risk management policies. The Commitiee reports regularly to the
Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the I
company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly by the Executive Management to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards [
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees I
understand their roles and obligations The company's Internal Audit oversees how management monitors

compliance with the company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk |
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the company. |

36.2 CreditRisk H
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to I
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the company's receivables from clients and other I
related parties.

Trade and other receivables 116,401 169,522 |

Other receivables and prepayment 47,575 48 416 H

Cash and cash equivalents 6,163 37,687
170,139 255,625 |

36.3 Cashandcashequivalents H
The cash and cash equivalents held as at 31 December 2019 was N6.2 million (2018: N37.6 million). The cash
and cash equivalents are held by banks and financial institutions in Nigeria. I

36.4 Liguidityrisk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its |
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The company’s approach to I
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the company’s reputation. I

The company has a clear focus on ensuring sufficient access to capital to finance growth and to refinance
maturing debt obligations. As part of the liquidity management process, the company has various credit |
arrangements with some banks which can be utilised to meet its liquidity requirements. I

Typically, the credit terms with clients are more favourable compared to payment terms to its vendors in order to
help provide sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of I
financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be I
predicted, such as natural disasters.
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365 Marketrisk ”
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity I
prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of |
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the retumn.

The Company manages market risks by keeping costs low through various cost optimization programs. I
Moreover, market developments are monitored and discussed regularly, and mitigating actions are taken where |
necessary.

36.6 Currencyrisk H
The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a I
currency other than the functional currency of the Company, primarily the Naira. The currency in which these I
transactions primarily are denominated is US Dollars (USD). The currency risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange rates.

In managing currency risk, the company aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations on earnings. The [
company's significant exposure to currency risk relates to its purchases that are mainly in USD. Although the I
company has various measures to mitigate exposure to foreign exchange rate movement over the longer term,
the gains/losses on foreign exchange balances impact on the income statement. The company monitors the
movement in the currency rates on an on-going basis. |

|
|
|
l
I
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
\
\
I
|
|
|
|
|
| 36.7 Capital Risk Management I
| The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, which the
| Company defines as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders’ equity. H
|
|
|
|
|
\
|
\
\
I
|
|
|
|
|
|
\
\
|
|
|
|
|

The Company’s debt to adjusted capital ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: I

Debts 15,000 50,000 I

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (6,163) (37 687)

Total equity 1,311,473 1,590,356 |

Adjusted capital 1,320,310 1,602,669 [
[

Debts to adjusted capital ratio 1 3

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year. I
The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. I

37.  Contingentliabilities ”
Celebration Brewing Company filed an action against Pharma Deko Plc seeking to enforce the arbitral award I
made by Hon. Justice Abdullahi Mustapha OFR in the arbitration between Pharma Deko and Celebration I
Brewing Company in the sum N13,895706.64. Celebration Breweries also claims interest at 15%. H
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS = CONT’D !

Figures in Maira thousand 2019 2018

The novel coronavirus (COVID-189) pandemic which is spread around the globe rapidly is taking a toll on not just H
human life, but on businesses and financial markets too, and the extent of this is currently indeterminate. I
Companies therefore need to carefully consider the accounting implications of this situation. [

While the outbreak is having impact on almost all entities directly or indirectly, it has directly affected the I
operations of our compamy especially since March 2020 with widespread lockdowns being enforced across the
world.

The company's Consumer business is directly affected by COVID-19 as we are to import needed spare part for |
our Bottling Machine from Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) in China. The delay in importation of the I
spare parts from China due to lockdown has disrupted in many ways the productions of Sans Cream Soda the [
major product of Pharma-Deko Plc. This will definitely impact the profitability of our consumer business in 2020. I

Pharma-Deko Ple, also being a player in the pharmaceuticals and medical subsector of the manufacturing
industry, has been affected adversely on its raw materials input as many of the suppliers are unable to physically
bring the materials to Pharma-Deko Premises because of the restriction of movement and border closure. This H
has affected the price of raw and packaging materials. |

Itis difficult at this early period to estimate the financial impact of the Novel COVID-19 Pandemic on the company [
as it is not yet practicable to do so. Therefore, no financial impact of this pandemic is disclosed in the financial I
statements. Moreover, this event is seen as a non-adjusting post period event, and thus will not have financial
effect on the balance reported in year 2019 Financial Statements.

Based on the available information to date, the Directors believe that the Novel COVID-19 Fandemic will not a |
much significant effect on the future operations of the company especially as several measures have already I
been put in place as the lockdown is being eased, to ensure the company is able to maintain and even improve I
onits level of operations. I

The Directors also believe that the Going-Concern of Pharma-Deko Plc is not threatened by this COVID-19
Pandemic because of the measures already putin place to keep the organization on a Going-concern tooling
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT H

H

‘ il |
Figures in Naira thousand 2019 2019 2018 2018 |
% gt

“Walue added” is the measure of wealth the company has created in its operations by “adding value” to the cost of I
products and services. The statement below summarises the total wealth created and shows how it was shared
by employees and other parties who contributed to its creation. Also set out below is the amount retained and re-
invested in the company for the replacement of assets and the further development of operations.

Value Added |

Value added by operating activities |

Revenue 484 574 1,023,806 |

Bought - in materials and services (461,711) (832,353) I

Other operating income 90,668 11,223 H

Other operating gains (losses) 764 7 . |
114,295 100 202,683 100

|

Value Distributed I

I

To Pay Employees I

Salaries, wages, medical and other benefits I

(including directors) 369,486 439,857 o |

369.486 323 439.857 217 H

To Pay Providers of Capital |

Finance costs 7.451 938 : [

7,451 7 938 - I

[

To Pay Government H

Income tax 2423 9277 : i

2,423 2 9,277 5 H

To be retained in the business for expansion and future wealth creation: I

Value reinvested [

Depreciation and amortisation 13,818 17.871 ; I

13.818 12 17.871 9 H

Value retained H

Retained profit (278.883) (265.260) .

(278,883) (244) (265,260) (131) |

Total Value Distributed 114,295 100 202,683 100 [

Value added represents the additional wealth which the company has been able to create by its own and |
employees efforts. I



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Figures in Naira thousand
Statement of Financial Position

Assets
Mon-current assets
Current assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Reserves

Retained income

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income

Other operating gains (losses)

Other operating expenses
Operating (loss) profit

Finance costs

Derecognition of loan liability

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

{Loss) profit from continued operations
(Loss) profit for the year

Retained (loss) income for the year

2019 2018 2017 2016

1,733,933 1,812,288 1,736,358 1,744,661 1,317,719
463469 510,849 534236 579,383 1.252.363
2,197,402 2323137 2,270,594 2,324,044 2,570,082
246,887 186,991 100,068 100,349 72,340
639.041 545790 427,991 482,920 712,545
885928  732.781 528,059 583,269 784,885
488,475 488475 488,475 488,475 488,495
1,365,223 1,365,223 1,241,432 1,241,432 1,034,607
(542.224)  (263,342) 12,628 10,868 262,095
1,311,474 1,590,356 1,742,535 1,740,775 1,785.197
2,197,402  2,323137 2,270,594 2,324,044 2,570,082
484 574 1,023,806 1,593,379 1,095,109 1,481,964
(312.617) _ (622.439) _ (830.230) (595,558)  (769.751)
171,957 401,367 763,149 499,551 712,213
90,668 11,223 3,383 31,930 885,443
764 7 756 5615 :
(532.398) (667.642)  (727.974) (745,619) (1,311.458)
(269,009)  (255,045) 39,314 (208,523) 286,198

(7,451) (938) g ; :

B - - - 415,476
(276,460)  (255,983) 39,314 (208,523) 701,674
(2423)  (9.277)  (26.709) (10,182)  (42,410)
(278,883)  (265,260) 12,605 (218,705) 659,264
(278,883)  (265,260) 12,605 (218.705)  659.264
(278.883) (265,260 12,605 (218,705) 659,264

61



BRIEF HISTORY
Pharma Deko Plc with headquarters
at Plot C1/1, Okene Close, Agbara
Industrial te, Agbara Ogun State,
Nigeria, formally. known as PARKE DAVIS &
CO (NIG)LTD in 1962, is today a growing,
innovative and dynamic pharmaceutical and
consumer manufacturing company.

Pharma Deko Plc turned 50 years in 2012,

QUALITY STATEMENT
Pharma Deko Plc is committed to the production and
delivery of quality products and services that conform
to quality standards as prescribed in International

Monographs (European Pharmacopeia, British

Pharmacopeia, and United State Pharmacopeia)

and Company Standards. Our strive fnr qualny is
continuous in recognition of the dy

Generatmns To Generations Havepended ]

Custovner Carg Lines: (8160622159, 05159060293 Plat C1/1, Okene Close. Aqbara Ingersinial Esfate, Aghars, Ogun Shafe
Websile: wiww phamnadekoplc.com  Emad Address. infofipharmadekopic com
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SHAREHOLDERS’ PROXY FORM www.pharmadekoplc.com |

50™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING to be held at Palmgrove House, No. 1, Shagamu Avenue, llupeju, Lagos |
State on Thursday, 12 November, 2020 at 12 noon H

{(Name of Shareholder(s)in Block Letters)

Being a member of Pharma-Deko Plc hereby appoint ..., ** ar failing
him/her the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to act and vote on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the company to be held on 12 November, 2020 and at any adjournment thereof. |
Datedthis ........cooooviiiiiiiiiiienn. dayof. ..o, 2020. I

Shareholder's Signature .........covivviiiiiiiiciiirirsernre s irnans

Mumberaf Shames Held i i e |

S/N_| RESOLUTION FOR AGAINST . [
. Toreceive the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December, I
2019, together with the report of the Directors, Audit Committee and I
Independent Auditors thereon.
To re-elect/elect the following Directors who retire by rotation:
Chief C.C. Chikeluba ”
Mr. K.A. Lawson |
Mr. 0.0. Isola . I
To re-appoint the Firm of SIAQ (Chartered Accountants) as Auditors |
To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors. I

To elect members of the Audit Committee.

T

PP TN

o

Please indicate with an ‘x" in the appropriate box how you wish your vote to be cast on the resolution set
out above. Unless otherwise instructed, the Proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion. H

NOTES [
Amember who is unable to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is allowed by law to vote by proxy. The I
proxy form should be completed, if the member will not be attending the meeting. I

If you are unable to attend the meeting, read the following instructions carefully.
(A)  Write your name in BLOCK LETTERS in the space marked * H
(B) Write the name of your proxy where marked ** and ensure that the form is signed by you and/or any other |
shareholder (in case of joint shareholders). I
(C) If the shareholder is a corporate body, this form must be under its common seal or under hand of some |
officers or attorney duly authorized on the behalf. I
(D)  Tobe valid, the executed proxy form should be stamped by the Commissioner of Stamp duties and must I
be deposited at the office of the Company Secretary no less than 48 hours before the meeting.

Provision has been made on this form for Mr. Matthew Akinlade or failing him, Mr. Anthony Omojola or failing him,
Mrs. Bisi Bakare or failing her, Mr. Nornah Awoh or failing him, Mrs. Samiat to act as your proxy, who will attend I
the meeting and vote on your behalf at the meeting. I
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION FORM """ P1armadefopic.com

PHARMA |
A DEKD i1 |

«Providing Healthy Soiutions I

Dear Jir l

Az g sharehoider of Phama Deke Pic. We seek below mformma®ion for our records:

S LAME FRIT NAME

Gﬁ: [ {N‘L‘I'EZ

POSTAL ADDRESS

BMAIL ADDRELS|:

MOBILE NUMBER: l
Thark you. [
I
¥ g fabeid, i
I
Sharehcider s signature / Date Joint Shareholder s signature, Date I
i —‘—-.,\ I
ol

Kindty refum fra duly Compieted form fo k\ Il:;&_;”/) I
— [

Ceclarc®on

| herat, Jacare that the riormatcr | hove prov Ges & rue ora corect and tna* | 1hal I
b= reld ichie for any me information. H

Jharehoider's Signature

Tel: +334 )28 11 |
« 134 ) TOd 612 GEml |
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AUTHORITY TO ELECTRICALLY RECEIVE CORPORATE INFORMATION

We would like to introduce to our members/shareholders the electronic delivery of corporate information such as
annual reports, financial statements and proxy form. This is in line with modern developments in electronic

communications and is geared towards circumventing late receipt of corporate information.
Members may elect to this service, as an alternative to receiving paper copies of corporate information and

materials. Members can electto receive an electronic copy of Company's information via email or to receive such
corporate information through a compact disc sent by post.

In the event that a member elects to use this service, Pharma-Deko Plc will take all necessary steps to ensure

that our members' information within our control is not used for wrongful or illegal purposes.

To take advantage of this service, kindly complete the authority to electronically receive information attached
below and return to The Company Secretary at 1, Shagamu Avenue, llupeju, Lagos or our Registrars at 8, Alhaji
Balogun Street, Off Norman Williams Crescent, South/West lkoyi, Lagos

AsiaElvis Evbaruovbokhanre
Unity Trustees Limited

(Company Secretary)

1, Shagamu Avenue llupeju, Lagos.

[ e T T FReer il o I LUR P Py e S P EE Tk X o S e T ot being a member /
members of

Pharma-Deko Plc hereby authorise(s) the Company to send me /us and hereby agree to receive all future
corporate information of the Company electronically.
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SALIN’S

LINIMENT _ .

100ML

. For fast relieve of muscular and joint pains. I
- Muscular Cramps I
- Stiffness of neck, backache and soreness [ H
- Sprains of muscle and tendons. H
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Sugar-Free

® NonAlcoholic
@® Low LCalorie




Paracetamol For

Infants and Babies A Brand of Vitamin C
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A Brand of
| Multivitamin
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CHERTY COUGH =

E
Hexedene’ ; =

Hexetidine 0.1%
Oral Antiseptic

EFFECTIVE e e X0
MOUTH S
serve Chilled 2= P

THROAT §

INFECTIONS

| REFRESHING DRINK &

Sugar-Free

For The Treatment of: : ”
: ® Non-Alcoholic |

v Sore Throat |

v Bleeding Gums

v Mouth Ulcers
+ Sore Gums

R e R S The Refreshing Drink With a Real Creamy Taste |

consult your doctor/physician H




